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We are pleased to sharc our results with you and discuss some 01 the major fac tors

that influenced our performance over the past year As market solatffity and ec onomic

hallenges contrnue many insurers are experienc rig more diffic ult limate to

manage their businesses and raise apital Believing that uncertainty can also create

opporturlilies we brought our professional liability insurance program for small law

tirms and solo
pr

actitioners online in January 201 Results are progressing in line with

revrsed for cc asts and we are enc ouraged by the response
As shareholders you have been supportive of our elforts by rec omniendrug

our products We continue to focus on fulfilling our vision of professionil Irahility

insuraric ss rtli affordable protection that is designed for small business the advent of

vrrtual technology omliined with our state of the art Web-based
prograrii

is enahl mg
accountants and lawy ers to rc hase insurance online and tc manage their accounts

frorrr any bc atron they hoose This enables us to achieve our goal to engage

ustomers deliver what they want arid need and help them to make better bLrsiriess

dec isions

PUR5urNO OPPORTUNrTY

In rts second ear of operation our wholly ow ned subsrdiary Amerlnst lr otessiona

Servft es ni ited APSf reac lied turn
irig poi nt In the 4th quarter of 20 we wrote

Iota pr
cmi um of $601 86 ompa red to 51 34860 in 201 ri that sa rue icr iod the

prcriiiuni
fcr accountants professional liability insuranc increased 8o year over

yeag with an irrrpressivc 90o renewal rate

Under our existing agency agreement APSI acts as the cxc lusive
agent

for rum
Irisur aric Group CF to solic it under write quote bind issue cancel non

renew and endorse acc ou ntants arid lawyers prcfcssional liability insurance oserage

ri all 30 states of the United States arid the District of Coluriihia Vell-regarcJed for

its financial strength is rated xc el lerih by 54 Best Co he onipany is

pm ovicler 01 unique specialty nsu ra nc offer ngs rid has been writ
rig professional

liability coverage for os er 23 ears

Clearly the professional liability rnsurarice market is olalile and subject to

unpr edic table underwriting results With new business plan still in rts torniatrve years

it is diffft ult for us to predict the amount of reverrue that vvi II he generated under our

existing agency agreement with CF urthermore our investment results are dependent

on tactors such as interest rates that cannot be controlled and urrent market conditions

arid instability in global redrt riiarkets present additional risks wliic Ii an adversely

affect our finianc al oricirtion In spite of these concerns vve remain optimrstic that our

orisistent approach and brig terrii tra cc ord rIb sustarn our growth in thc years

ahead

OUR KNow EDGE AND ExrRftNu

Our Coriipany was created by CPAs tor CPAs arid was reinsurer ot the AICPA plan

tor two dec ades vVe rave leveraged our krnow ledge expertise and reIrtiurrshrps

to accelerate our expansion into the professnonal liability insurance mar ket Our

ac countarits program is designed for sole practitioners and

small firms
usrng on price arid protection we have

eliminated the use of expensive nia Iprac tmce suits by

cxc luding large tir ms arid those that perform public audits

from our pool of mnsureds Many of those companies tencf to

have high risk and greater claims severity

Our renewa rate

for poHcyhoders
from 2010 2011

Tota premhim wrtten iii 4th quarter 2011



We recently launched new Web 2.0 home

page design for accountants It streamlines the

navigation process and provides quicker access

to indications and quote information Eliminating

many of the manual steps that most professional

liability insurance companies still employ
allows us to pass greater cost savings on to our

policyholders

otolsil
Date that we began writing

lawyers professional liability insurance

Obtaining comprehensive coverage online is

easy fast secure and paperless Policyholders can

experience electronic signature processing pay

premiums online and receive email verification

on their terms whether they are in their office

traveling or in the privacy of their homes

PROTECTION FOR SMAii LAW FIRMS

Through the years we have become well versed

in the complexities of the accounting profession

It seemed logical extension to expand our

program to solo and small law firms so that they

could protect their assets with quality insurance

coverage at competitive rates they can afford

Our claims-made professional liability policy

has limit and deductible options and host of

features and benefits tailored to their needs

50
Nationwide presence licensed for accountants and

lawyers professional liability coverage in all 50 states

of the United States and the District of Columbia

streamlined Web-based process includes

online access to policy information as well as

superior claims loss control and risk management

services For those who prefer more personal

touch in-house licensed professional liability

specialists are available to answer questions

about what to expect when
purchasing policy

what is included in the program limits of liability

exclusions or simply how to manage an online

account

For more information about the smarter

choices that are available or to renew current

policy visit www.protexureaccountants.com or

www.protexurelawyers.com

COMMITMENT TO SHAREH0wERs

Financial strength and stability is essential for any
insurance organization We continue to reiterate

the importance of our A-11Excel lent rating from

Best Co because that represents vote

of confidence in companys ability to meet its

obligations to policyholders and shareholders

Our rating was reaffirmed by Best in 2011

with an outlook that is stable This reflects the

Companys strong capitalization and
experienced

management team as well as its niche expertise

as reinsurer of professional liability policies

218%
Increase in

accountants premium
written year over year

We also take pride in our record of paying

consecutive dividends since 1995 The Company
paid two semi-annual dividends in March and

September 2011 of $0.47 per share However
some belt tightening forced us to lower our

dividend in March 2012 to $0.25 per
share

This will allow us to maintain our Best

Co rating continue to fund our new start-up

operation and conserve surplus needed for the

Companys reinsurance activities

As APSL moves into its third
year

of

operation we extend our thanks to those who

have contributed to our progress
Thank you

to our shareholders and employees for your

commitment and support
We value the trust that you place in us and

look forward to serving your professional liability

needs in the
years to come

Sincerely

Irvin Diamond CPA/PFS CFP
Chairman

This Chairmans Letter contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements include among others statements about our beliefs

plans objectives goals expectations estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors many of which are beyond our control The words may
could should would believe anticipate estimate expect intend plan target goal and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements as well as specific statements regarding

our ability to continue meeting our obligations to policyholders and shareholders ii the progress and high percentage of policy renewals with our accountants and lawyers professional liability programs iii our ability to

maintain our AM Best Co rating at or above its current level and iv our ability to declare and pay dividends to our shareholders in the future Some or all of the events or results anticipated by these forward-looking state

ments may not occur Factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially include difficult economic conditions and unexpected changes in insurance laws and regulations Additional risk factors related to Amerlnst and

an investment in our common stock are contained in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission including our annual report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2011 Amerlnst does not undertake
any

duty nor does it intend to update the results of these forward-looking statements

Protection for çenerations of Trofessionayirms



RESULTS
FOR THE
YEAR

We cc oided net loss of $1069 160

and $1101793 in 2011 and 2010 respectivels The net loss

rec coded lot the year ended Dw ember .31 2011 ssas largely

aft ibutable to operating and management expenses inc urred

by APS which were partially offset by net realiLed gains on

irtsestnients and the rec ognition 01 the addtuonal rec ovenes

assoc ated ss ith the Arbitt ation as del med in the ompanys

11 fhe net loss met orded during thc ear ended ember

31 11 was largely am mbutable to operating and
managenlent

expenses
incurred by \ISt whft were partially

offset by net

me lized gains on investments

On net prem new earned wet 41 2840 for the ear

ended December 31 0t compared to $1 140 for the

year
ended Dec ember It 2010 an increase of $2 300 or

62 he net prmIiiums eat ned dum mng 2011 and 2010

ccc me attnbutable to net mun cessions from undem

the kensuranc \greement as defined in the ompans 10

in he amnunts of 3364 and 42990 and to recisions to

AlCO premium estimates fot
pt

ior years in the amounts

ot 10 24 and $11 31 respectisely
the inc cease in net

premiums earned under the keinsuranc Agreement resulted

mm increased essions from At in 2111 as esult ot bighem

level of itndercc
citing activity under the Agen Agreement as

let tied in tlic ompany tO resulting trom the continued and

sm essful niarketing of the piograni by APSL

tot the years ended Dec embei 31 2011 and 2011 we

icc orded ommission inc ome undet the
Agency Agreement ot

338488 and 58a03 respectively an inctease of $303437

cc 56.8 This increase resulted ft om higher col cime of

piciluuins
cc mitten undci the \genc \greement in 201

rec crded nct ns estment inc onie ot 5409 133 tot thc

eat ended Dec embet II 2011 conipaied to 4052 tO for

the
year

ended Decembet 30 2011 an tic tease of 122 or

.01 he inc rease is primarily attributable to the dec tease in

inccsnieiit managers fees that csulted from the eduction in

Hic mvestment portfolio and dec rease in the amomtizatioti cit

premium on fixed income sec um ties in 201 as result of the

pci
chase ot secum Hics with lower coupon mates and premiums

and thc mat uritv cit older securities cc itli higher oupon mates

antI pmmiiums Animalized investment ield calc ulated as tot il

intct est and di\ idends divided by the net acemage amount of total

nvcstments and cash and cash equivalents was b0o in OIl

marginal inc rease frcm the 4o yield
earned in 2010

As cit ec ember II 2011 our total investmiients were

$1 dec tease ot $3813939 or 14.40 from

263 9489 at Dcc etimber 31 2010 he decrease was priniamily

due to sales of certain equits sec uritics thc inatut ity
of two fixed

maturity sec 11 rities and the dcc cease in the fair va 1cm cf ecta in

equity securitics as result of adverse market onditions the

cash and cash equicalents balance dcci eased frcm $9t697

at Dec enibec 31 2111 to 904 183 at Dec ember 2011

dec rease cf $66212 or 6.8 the amiiount of cash and cash

equivalents caries depending on the maturities of fixed mini

nvestrnent mid on the Icc el of fumids mivested in monec

mat ket funds the restricted cash and ash equivalents balan

inc teased from $842 at December 31 2110 to 434924

at Dec embet II 2011 am increase of $3 1168 or 41

The inc cease is due to lie timing of sales and maturities cit

investments held as estm icted ash at Dec cmhcc 31 201 that

hace tot yet been ceincested

For the yea ended ec embet II 21111 we rec orded loss

and loss adjustment met oceries of $1 3028 as resuft of the

rc ogmi ition of the additional icc ovet ies awarded to the ompany

followimtg the Arbitmation in the amount of $31 3299 net of

loss and loss adjustmcnt expenses
that cescmltcd tomim reserves of

328 580 established pumsuamit tc the Reinscicanc Agreement

oftset by fac ocable development omi AvlI and PD1 tom

the year crtded December 31 2313 we ccc orded loss amid loss

adjcistment cxpetlses
cf $26869 that resulted fromii resetves of

$32000 established
pc suamit to thc Rei nscmranc greement

offset by favorable des elopment on AMI and PDI
Wc ccc cedeti policy acquisition costs of $1 36 99 for the

year
ended Dec ember 31 201 ompamcd to po1 ac qcmisition

icc ovem ics cf $12 09 for the year ended Dcc emmibem 31 2310

Pc3mc ac
qctmdtiomi

costs cc hmc Ii pritnat mly ceding omnion

paid ci lie ceding insurer ace established as pemc entage

of
pcemicims wm ittemi thctefom am inc cease or dec measc in

premiums written will result in similam mncmcase cm decmcasc in

policy acquisition costs hc policy ac qu
sition costs mcc ceded mm

lie yeam emided Dec emnbcm 31 231 were 373 of the
pm

en umiis

eat ned cm nchem the Rei nsu ma mice Agmceememit ot $42 3364 net cf

policy ac qcmismtmon
mccovecies in thc amount ot $1 19 that were

attributable to the mc visions to the AMICO pcem cimn estimates

for
pm

iom years as ncted above Fhc policy ac quisitmon icc os cries

recorded dumimib the seat ended Dec emnhem II 2111 were

attributable tc mcc ovem ics in the amount of 2811 iii melaon

tc thc revisions the AMI pmetlmmum estimates tom pnom

cams net of pol icy ac qumsmtion csts epmcsetiting 37.0 ot lie

eni mci its ea mnccI under the Rem nscm ma nc \gmeemiiemit
ot 42990

fhc omiipan\ c\pensed opecatimig md managememmt

cxpemtses of $4036 43 and 191078 dum
ing

2111 and 2310

mcspcc tmccly Thc chet line is lamgels attcthuttblc to educ ion in

pmotessiomial and marketing expcnses inc ctmcech by AISL dcmmmng

the
year ompamecl Ic 2311 as mescm It ot AhSt bringing

iii house

host of its mat ketimig
and

pm
omnotional cc ork amid educing its

mcliammcc on tI mud patty onli aoms amid service providers

The hook value
per

shame of lie Commipany ccmtstactdimig

shames at Dcc embem .31 svas 33.2
per

shame in 2011 amid

346 per
shacc in 2010 The Conmpans paid dividends dcii ing

2011 of $613993 ommsisting of semiii annual c1mvidemmds paid in

March and October of
Item

shacc On Macc ft 2012 the

Hoard of Directors dec lamed semi annual dmvmdemmd of per

shame to be paid omm or befote Macc 30 2112 to shareholders of

ccc ord omm Febccmacy 29 2012
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Introductory Note

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K or otherwise made by our officers including statements

related to our future performance ability to successfully implement our business plan and our outlook for our

businesses and respective markets projections statements of our managements plans or objectives forecasts of

market trends and other matters are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and contain information relating to us that is based on the beliefs of our

management as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to our management The

words expect believe may and similar expressions as they relate to us or our management are intended to

identify forward-looking statements Such statements reflect our managements current views with respect to

future events and are subject to certain risks uncertainties and assumptions that could cause actual results to

differ materially from those reflected in any forward-looking statements Our actual future results may differ

materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements Factors that might cause such actual results to

differ materially from those reflected in any forward-looking statements include but are not limited to the

factors discussed in detail in Part Item 1A Risk Factors and Part II Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this form 10-K as well as

our ability to generate increased revenues and positive earnings in future periods

the occurrence of catastrophic events with frequency or severity exceeding our expectations

decrease in the level of demand for insurance and reinsurance or an increase in the supply of

reinsurance capacity

the successful implementation of our new business plan without significant depletion of our cash

resources the maintenance of sufficient capital levels and the retention of our current A.M Best rating

worsening of the current global economic market conditions and global credit crisis and changing rates

of inflation and other economic conditions

increased competitive pressures including the consolidation and increased globalization of reinsurance

providers

actual losses and loss expenses exceeding our loss reserves which are necessarily based on the actuarial

and statistical projections of ultimate losses

increased rate pressure on premiums

adequacy of our risk management and loss limitation methods

the integration of businesses we may acquire or new business ventures we may start

acts of terrorism political unrest outbreak of war and other hostilities or other non-forecasted and

unpredictable events

changes in the legal or regulatory environments in which we operate and

other risks including those risks identified in any of our other filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission

The foregoing review of important factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in

conjunction with other cautionary statements that are included herein Readers are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on these forward-looking statements which reflect our managements analysis only as of the date they

are made We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future revisions we may make to

forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of

unanticipated events



PART

Item Business

General

Unless otherwise indicated by the context in this annual report we refer to Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd

and its subsidiaries as the Company Amerlnst we or us AMIC Ltd means Amerlnsts wholly-owned

subsidiary Amerlnst Insurance Company Ltd APSL means Amerlnst Professional Services Limited

Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Amerlnst Mezco Ltd Mezco which is wholly-

owned subsidiary of Amerlnst Investco means Amerlnst Investment Company Ltd subsidiary of AMIC

Ltd AMIG means our predecessor entity Amerlnst Insurance Group Inc Delaware corporation Our

principal offices are do Cedar Management Limited 25 Church Street Continental Building P.O Box HM
1601 Hamilton Bermuda HM GX

Amerlnst Bermuda holding company was formed in 1998 Our mission is to be company that provides

insurance protection for professional service firms and engages in investment activities Amerlnst has two

operating segments reinsurance activity which includes investments and other activities and insurance

activity which offers professional liability solutions to professional service firms The revenues of the

reinsurance activity operating segment and the insurance activity operating segment were $2601937 and

$388717 for the
year

ended December 31 2011 compared to $2918696 and $85249 for the year ended

December 31 2010 respectively The revenues for both operating segments were derived from business

operations in the United States other than interest income on bank accounts maintained in Bermuda

Entry into Agency Agreement

On September 25 2009 APSL entered into an agency agreement the Agency Agreement with The

North River Insurance Company United States Fire Insurance Company Crum Forster Indemnity Company

Crum and Forster Insurance Company and Crum Forster Specialty Insurance Company collectively CF
pursuant to which CF appointed APSL as its exclusive agent for the purposes of soliciting underwriting

quoting binding issuing cancelling non-renewing and endorsing accountants professional liability and

lawyers professional liability insurance coverage in all 50 states of the United States and the District of

Columbia The initial term of the Agency Agreement is for four years with automatic one-year renewals

thereafter

Entry into Reinsurance Agreement

We conduct our reinsurance business through AMIC Ltd our subsidiary which is registered insurer in

Bermuda On September 25 2009 AMIC Ltd entered into professional liability quota share agreement with

CFthe Reinsurance Agreement pursuant to which CFagreed to cede and AMIC Ltd agreed to accept as

reinsurance 50% quota share of CF liability under insurance written by APSL on behalf of CFand

classified by CF as accountants professional liability and lawyers professional liability subject to AMIC

Ltd.s surplus limitations The initial term of the Reinsurance Agreement is for four years with automatic

one-year renewals thereafter

Historical Relationship with CNA

Historically the primary business activity of our wholly-owned insurance subsidiary AMIC Ltd had been

to act as reinsurer of professional liability insurance policies that were issued under the Professional Liability

Insurance Plan sponsored by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants AICPA The AICPA

plan offers professional liability coverage to accounting firms and individual CPAs in all 50 states

Our reinsurance activity depends upon agreements with outside parties AMIG our predecessor entity

began our reinsurance relationship with CNA Financial Corporation CNA in 1993



On January 2009 AMIC Ltd received written notice from CNA that CNA did not intend to renew the

reinsurance program encompassed by the Amerlnst Insurance Company Limited Accountants Professional

Liability Treaty and the Value Plan Policies Accountants Professional Liability Quota Share Treaty the

Reinsurance Treaties In 2008 the business relationship with CNA accounted for approximately 95% of

Amerlnst net premiums earned

On May 15 2009 AMIC Ltd and CNA entered into Commutation Agreement whereby effective

January 2009 in exchange for payment of portion of the reserves which we had previously set aside CNA
assumed responsibility for prior years undetermined and unpaid liabilities

Historical Relationship with CAMICO

From June 2005 through May 31 2009 we were party to reinsurance contract with CAMICO Mutual

Insurance Company CAMICO California-based writer of accountants professional liability business

We decided not to renew the CAMICO contract and permitted the contract to expire pursuant to its terms on

May 31 2009 We remain potentially liable for claims related to coverage through May 31 2009

VSC Payment

On July 22 2009 the Company received payment of $500891 from FFG Insurance Company formerly

known as Virginia Surety Company VSC in satisfaction of certain recoveries not previously remitted by

VSC under retrocession contracts between the Company and VSC for the
years

1989-1993 The $500891

payment was recorded as decrease in losses and loss adjustment expenses for the year ended December 31

2009 Following this payment the Company initiated arbitration with VSC the Arbitration to seek additional

recoveries in respect of unpaid losses unpaid premiums fees and interest During the arbitration VSC conceded

that $25785 in unpaid premiums was due and payment was remitted to the Company On October 2011 the

Company was formally awarded $289514 as result of the Arbitrations final outcome The award represented

unpaid losses of $241943 fees of $11280 and interest of $36291 The total net award of $315299 from VSC

was recorded as decrease in losses and loss adjustment expenses in the third quarter of 2011

Attorneys Professional Liability Coverage

On January 2003 we entered into 15% participation of Professionals Direct Insurance Companys

PDIC attorneys professional liability first excess cover This participation terminated on December 31 2003

The final reported claim was closed during 2011 and although we no longer anticipate we will be liable for

further claims related to this period of coverage there is remote possibility further claims could be reported

Third-party Managers and Service Providers

Cedar Management Limited provides the day-to-day services necessary
for the administration of our

business Our agreement with Cedar Management Limited renewed for one year beginning January 2012 and

ending December 31 2012 Mr Stuart Grayston our President was formerly director and officer of Cedar

Management Limited and Mr Thomas McMahon our Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer is

shareholder officer director and employee of Cedar Management Limited

Mowery Schoenfeld LLC an accounting firm affiliated with former director and chairman emeritus

provides accounting functions to APSL Our agreement with Mowery Schoenfeld LLC renewed for one year

beginning January 2012 and ending December 31 2012 pursuant to letter of understanding dated

February 20 2012 While the letter of understanding has no termination notice clause it can be terminated by

either party



The Country Club Bank of Kansas City Missouri provides portfolio management of fixed-income

securities and directs our investments pursuant to guidelines approved by us Harris Associates L.P and Aurora

Investment Management LLC provide discretionary investment advice with respect to our equity investments

We have retained Oliver Wyman an independent casualty actuarial consulting firm to render advice regarding

actuarial matters

Competition

Our main competition comes from brokers and agents that service accountants and attorneys for

accountants primarily AON Corporation large international corporation with 36000 employees in over 120

countries which has relationship with CNA Financial Corporation and CAMICO Mutual Insurance Company

California-based writer of accountants professional liability insurance In the lawyers market there are several

competitors varying by state including CNA Hanover Travelers Darwin and State Bar programs

Licensing and Regulation

The rates and terms of reinsurance agreements generally are not subject to regulation by any governmental

authority This is in contrast to direct insurance policies the rates and terms of which are subject to regulation by

state insurance departments As practical matter however the rates charged by primary insurers place limit

upon the rates that can be charged by reinsurers

Amerlnst through its wholly-owned subsidiary AMIC Ltd is subject to regulation under the insurance

laws of Bermuda where AMIC Ltd and Amerlnst are domiciled

APSL Delaware corporation subsidiary of Mezco and managing general underwriter responsible for

offering professional liability solutions to professional service firms continues to work closely with CF to

secure regulatory approval from various state insurance departments As of December 31 2011 APSL has

received regulatory approval to act as an insurance agent in 50 states and the District of Columbia

Bermuda Regulation

AMIC Ltd as licensed Bermuda insurance company is subject to regulation under The Insurance Act of

1978 as amended and Related Regulations collectively the Insurance Act which provide that no person

shall conduct insurance business including reinsurance in or from Bermuda unless registered as an insurer under

the Insurance Act by the Bermuda Monetary Authority BMA In deciding whether to grant registration the

BMA has discretion to act in the public interest The BMA is required by the Insurance Act to determine whether

an applicant for registration is fit and proper body to be engaged in insurance business and in particular

whether it has or has available to it adequate knowledge and expertise In connection with registration the BMA

may impose conditions relating to the writing of certain types of insurance

The Insurance Act requires among other things that Bermuda insurance companies meet and maintain

certain standards of liquidity and solvency file periodic reports in accordance with the Bermuda Statutory

Accounting Rules produce annual audited statutory financial statements and annual audited financial statements

prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles U.S GAAP or International

Financial Reporting Standards IFRS and maintain minimum level of statutory capital and surplus All

Bermuda insurers must also comply with the BMAs Insurance Code of Conduct ICIC which came into

force on July 2011 The ICIC establishes duties requirements and standards to be complied with under the

Act Failure to comply with the requirements of the ICIC will be factor taken into account by the BMA in

determining whether an insurer is conducting its business in sound and prudent manner under the Act In

general the regulation of insurers in Bermuda relies heavily upon the directors and managers of Bermuda

insurer each of whom must certify annually that the insurer meets the solvency liquidity and capital

requirements of the Insurance Act Furthermore the BMA is vested with powers to supervise investigate and

intervene in the affairs of Bermuda insurance companies Significant aspects of the Bermuda insurance

regulatory framework are described below



An insurers registration may be canceled by the BMA on grounds specified in the Insurance Act including

the failure of the insurer to comply with the obligations of the Insurance Act or if in the opinion of the BMA the

insurer has not been carrying on business in accordance with sound insurance principles

Every registered insurer must appoint an independent auditor approved by the BMA That auditor must

annually audit and report on the statutory financial statements and the statutory financial return of the insurer

both of which are required to be filed annually with the BMA The approved auditor may be the same person or

firm that audits the insurers financial statements and reports for presentation to its shareholders

The Insurance Act provides that the statutory assets of an insurer must exceed its statutory liabilities by an

amount greater than the prescribed minimum solvency margin Pursuant to the Insurance Act AMIC Ltd is

registered as Class 3A insurer and as such is required to maintain minimum solvency margin equal to the

greatest of $1000000 20% of net premiums written in its current financial
year up to $6000000 plus

15% of net premiums written in its current financial year over $6000000 or 15% of loss reserves ii is

required to file annually with the BMA statutory financial return together with copy of its statutory financial

statements which includes report of the independent auditor concerning its statutory financial statements

declaration of the statutory ratios and the related solvency certificate an opinion of loss reserve specialist in

respect of its loss and loss expense provisions and audited annual financial statements prepared in accordance

U.S GAAP or IFRS all within four months following the end of the relevant financial year iii is prohibited

from declaring or paying any dividends during any financial year if it is in breach of its minimum solvency

margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if the declaration or payment of such dividends would cause it to fail to

meet such margin or ratio if it fails to meet its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio on the last

day of any financial year it will be prohibited without the approval of the BMA from declaring or paying any

dividends during the next financial year iv is prohibited without the approval of the BMA from reducing by

15% or more its total statutory capital as set out in its previous years financial statements and if it appears

to the BMA that there is risk of an AMIC Ltd becoming insolvent or that AMIC Ltd is in violation of the

Insurance Act or any conditions imposed upon AMIC Ltd.s registration the BMA may in addition to the

restrictions specified above direct it not to declare or pay any dividends or any other distributions or may restrict

AMIC Ltd from making such payments to such extent as the BMA deems appropriate

All Class 3A insurers are also required to maintain available statutory capital and surplus at level equal to

or in excess of their enhanced capital requirement ECR The applicable ECR is established by reference to

either The Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement which employs standard mathematical model that can

relate more accurately the risks taken on by insurers to the capital that is dedicated to their business or

BMA-approved internal capital model

The Insurance Act also provides minimum liquidity ratio for general business An insurer engaged in

general business is required to maintain the value of its relevant assets at not less than 75% of the amount of its

relevant liabilities Relevant assets include cash and time deposits quoted investments unquoted bonds and

debentures first liens on real estate investment income due and accrued accounts and premiums receivable and

reinsurance balances receivable There are certain categories of assets which unless specifically permitted by the

BMA do not automatically qualify such as advances to affiliates real estate and collateral loans The relevant

liabilities are total general business insurance reserves and total other liabilities less deferred income tax and

sundry liabilities by interpretation those not specifically defined

The BMA may appoint an inspector with extensive powers to investigate the affairs of an insurer if the

BMA believes that an investigation is required in the interest of the insurers policyholders or persons who may
become policyholders In order to verify or supplement information otherwise provided to him the BMA may
direct an insurer to produce documents or information in relation to matters connected with the insurers

business

If it appears to the BMA that there is risk of an insurer becoming insolvent or if the insurer is in violation

of the Insurance Act or the regulations or of any condition imposed on its registration as an insurer the BMA



may direct the insurer in certain respects including not to take on any new insurance business not to vary any

insurance contract if the effect would be to increase the insurers liabilities not to make certain investments to

realize certain investments to maintain in or transfer to and to keep in the custody of specified bank certain

assets not to declare or pay any dividends or other distributions or to restrict the making of such payments and

or to limit its premiums

As Bermuda insurer we are required to maintain principal office in Bermuda and to appoint and

maintain Principal Representative in Bermuda For the purpose of the Insurance Act our principal office is do

Cedar Management Limited 25 Church Street Continental Building P.O Box HM 1601 Hamilton HMGX
Bermuda which is our Principal Representative in Bermuda An insurer may only terminate the appointment of

its Principal Representative with reason acceptable to the BMA and the Principal Representative may not cease

to act as such unless the BMA is given 21 days notice in writing of the intention to do so It is the duty of the

Principal Representative upon determining that there is likelihood of the insurer for which it acts becoming

insolvent or it coming to his knowledge or his having reason to believe that an event has occurred to provide

verbal notification immediately and make report in writing to the BMA setting out all the particulars of the

case that are available to him within 14 days Examples of such an event include but not limited to failure by

the insurer to comply substantially with condition imposed upon the insurer by the BMA relating to solvency

margin or liquidity or other ratio

Except for business related to APSL our business is conducted from offices in Hamilton Bermuda We

manage our investments directly and through AMIC Ltd through independent investment advisors in the U.S

or other investment markets as needed and appropriate We do not operate as an investment manager or as

broker-dealer requiring registration under investment advisory or securities broker regulations in the U.S
Bermuda or otherwise The directors and officers of AMIC Ltd negotiate reinsurance treaties for acceptance in

Bermuda Among other matters the following business functions are conducted from our Bermuda offices

communications with our shareholders including financial reports ii communications with the general

public of nature other than advertising iii solicitation of the sale by us or any of our subsidiaries of shares in

any
of such entities iv accepting subscriptions of new shareholders of the Company maintenance of

principal corporate records and original books of account vi audit of original books of account

vii disbursement of funds in payment of dividends claims legal fees accounting fees and officers and

directors fees viii arrangement for and conduct of meetings of our shareholders and directors and shareholders

and directors of our subsidiaries and ixexecution of repurchases of our shares and shares of our subsidiaries

Except for our APSL office we do not maintain an office or place of business in the United States

AMIC Ltd ability to pay dividends to Amerlnst is subject to the provisions of the Bermuda insurance and

companies laws and the requirement to provide the ceding companies with collateral Under the Companies Act

AMIC Ltd would be prohibited from declaring or paying dividend at December 31 2011 if such payment

would reduce the realizable value of its assets to an amount less than the aggregate value of its liabilities issued

share capital and share premium accounts As of December 31 2011 approximately $32 million was available

for the declaration of dividends to shareholders However due to the requirement to provide the ceding

companies with collateral approximately $22 million was available for the payment of dividends to the

shareholders In addition AMIC Ltd must be able to pay its liabilities as they become due in the ordinary course

of its business after the payment of dividend Our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders and to pay our

operating expenses is dependent on cash dividends from our subsidiaries The payment of such dividends by

AMIC Ltd including its subsidiary Investco to us is also limited under Bermuda law by the Insurance Act and

Related Regulations which require that AMIC Ltd maintain minimum levels of solvency and liquidity as

described above For the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 these requirements have been met as follows

Statutory

Capital Surplus Relevant Assets

Minimum Actual Minimum Actual

December3l2011 $1000000 $33315313 $9342872 $10815518

December 31 2010 $1000000 $32209291 $9231848 $10869403



AMIC Ltd writes more than 50% unrelated business and consequently in accordance with the requirements

of the Insurance Amendment Act 2008 is registered as Class 3A insurer

Customers

Our only sources of income other than our investment portfolio are our Agency Agreement and

Reinsurance Agreement Without such agreements we believe current levels of investment income would

provide enough revenue to continue operations while the Company evaluated other reinsurance and insurance

opportunities

Employees

At December 31 2011 APSL had 15 employees full-time salaried employees and employees who are

paid hourly wages Neither Amerlnst nor any of our other subsidiaries have any employees

Loss Reserves

Our loss reserves changes in aggregate reserves for the last two years and loss reserve development as of

the end of each of the last ten years are discussed in Item of this Report Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements

included in Item of this Report and Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements

Developing Business

Amerlnst has filed an application with the U.S Patent and Trade Office for patent on unique financing

concept called RINITSTM that it has developed to securitize insurance and reinsurance risk involving property

casualty life and health Such securitization would be by equity and debt financing of Bermuda special purpose

companies licensed as reinsurers It is Amerlnsts intention to grant patent licenses to the special purpose

companies and investment banking organizations which will market the securities In addition to the license

royalties Amerlnst would manage the special purpose companies for fee and at its option could invest in them

as well However Amerlnst may not be issued patent and even if so may not be able to license such patent

In addition to the patent application Amerlnst has obtained trademark under which the concept will be

marketed

The disclosure of RINITSTM as separate operating segment was discontinued in the fourth quarter of 2010

for it no longer met the quantitative thresholds as prescribed by Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ASC 280 Segment Reporting

Available Information

We file annual quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other information with the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC or the Commission You may read any document we file with the Commission at

the Commissions public reference room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 Please call the Commission

at 1-800-SEC-0330 for information on the public reference room The Commission maintains an internet site that

contains annual quarterly and current reports proxy and information statements and other information that issuers

including Amerlnst file electronically with the Commission The Commissions internet site is www.sec.gov

Our internet site is www.amerinst.bm We make available free of charge through our internet site our annual

report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those

reports filed or furnished pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after

such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Commission You will need to have on your



computer the Adobe Acrobat Reader software to view these documents which are in PDF format If you do not

have Adobe Acrobat Reader link to Adobes internet site from which you can download the software is

provided We also make available through our internet site via links to the Commissions internet site

statements of beneficial ownership of our equity securities filed by our directors officers 10% or greater

shareholders and others under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act In addition we post on

www.amerinst.bm our Memorandum of Association our Bye-Laws our Statement of Share Ownership Policy

Charters for our Audit Committee and Governance and Nominations Committee as well as our Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics You can request copy of these documents excluding exhibits at no cost by writing or

telephoning us do Cedar Management Limited 25 Church Street Continental Building P.O Box HM 1601

Hamilton Bermuda HMGX Attention Investor Relations 441 295-6015 The information on our internet site

is not incorporated by reference into this report

Item 1A Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the following risk factors before deciding whether to invest in our common
stock Our business including our operating results and financial condition could be harmed by any of these

risks Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial

also may materially and adversely affect our business The value of our common stock could decline due to any

of these risks and you may lose all or part of your investment In assessing these risks you should also refer to

the other information contained in our filings with the SEC including our financial statements and related notes

We have incurred net losses for 2010 and 2011 and may incur further losses if we are unable to generate

significant revenues under our existing agency and reinsurance agreements

We incurred net losses of $2.3 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 respectively primarily due to the loss of our most significant customer in 2009 On

January 2009 AMIC Ltd our wholly-owned subsidiary received written notice from CNA that CNA did not

intend to renew its reinsurance agreement with us regarding the AICPA Plan In 2008 our business relationship

with CNA accounted for over 95% of our net premiums earned On May 15 2009 AMIC Ltd and CNA entered

into Commutation and Release Agreement whereby effective January 2009 in exchange for payment of

portion of the reserves which we had previously set aside CNA assumed responsibility for prior years

undetermined and unpaid liabilities

Effective September 25 2009 APSL wholly-owned subsidiary of Amerlnst Mezco Ltd which is

wholly-owned subsidiary of Amerlnst entered into the Agency Agreement with CFpursuant to which CF
appointed APSL as its exclusive agent for the

purposes
of soliciting underwriting quoting binding issuing

cancelling non-renewing and endorsing accountants professional liability and lawyers professional liability

insurance coverage in all 50 states of the United States and the District of Columbia Also on September 25

2009 AMIC Ltd entered into the reinsurance agreement with CF pursuant to which CFagrees to cede and

AMIC Ltd
agrees to accept as reinsurance fifty percent 50% quota share of CFs liability under insurance

written by APSL on behalf of CFand classified by CF as accountants professional liability and lawyers

professional liability

Because our new business plan is still in its formative years the Agency Agreement and Reinsurance

Agreement and our ability to generate revenue under either agreement is unproven neither agreement may result

in material revenue or profit which would adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

If our agreements with CFare terminated or CFchooses not to renew them our ability to generate

revenue would be adversely affected

We anticipate that the great majority of our revenue in the near future will be derived from the

commissions earned by APSL wholly-owned subsidiary of Mezco which is wholly-owned subsidiary of
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Amerlnst through the Agency Agreement with CF and ii the reinsurance activity under the Reinsurance

Agreement between AMIC Ltd our wholly-owned subsidiary and CF Therefore if CF should terminate or

choose not to renew one or both of those agreements or should renew them on terms less favorable to us our

ability to generate revenue may be adversely affected

We participate in potentially unprofitable unstable industry

The professional liability insurance industry is volatile and often sees fluctuations both in the frequency and

severity of claims particularly severity This is aggravated by the casualty insurance cycle which over period

of years varies from hard market with high or increasing premiums charged for risk to soft market with low

or decreasing premiums being charged The combination of volatility and insurance cycle variation results in

high degree of unpredictability of underwriting results from year to year Because as reinsurer we will be

directly influenced by the premium competition in the primary market and as quota share reinsurer we will be

directly dependent on the underwriting results of our cedants our revenue could be adversely affected by factors

beyond our control

Our industry is highly competitive and we may not be able to compete successfully in the future

Our industry is highly competitive and subject to pricing cycles that can be pronounced We compete solely

in the United States reinsurance and insurance markets Most of our competitors have greater financial resources

than we do and have established long term and continuing business relationships throughout the industry which

can be significant competitive advantage If we are unable to successfully compete against these companies our

profitability could be adversely affected

Our investment return may not be sufficient to offset underwriting losses which could negatively impact our

net income

Our investment income is subject to variation due to fluctuations of market interest rates on our fixed-

income portfolio and fluctuations of stock prices in our equity portfolio If such investment income is not

sufficient to offset potential underwriting losses or our capital is not sufficient to absorb adverse underwriting

and/or investment results our profitability would be adversely affected

Our inability to retain senior executives and other key personnel could adversely affect our business

The successful implementation of our new business plan is dependent upon our ability to retain APSL senior

executives and other qualified employees In November 2009 we entered into an employment agreement with

Mr Kyle Nieman President and CEO of APSL Mr Nieman has more than 25 years of insurance industry

experience In addition number of Amerlnsts operating activities as well as certain management functions are

performed by outside parties If such outside parties and our key employees were not to renew their relationship

with us or only upon terms that were not acceptable to us our business could be harmed

Your ownership of our shares does not guarantee insurance coverage

The ownership of our common shares by an accounting firm legal firm or individual practitioner will not

guarantee that such firm or individual will thereafter be able to obtain professional liability insurance under other

policies reinsured by AMIC Ltd or that such insurance will be competitively priced

There is no market for our shares and our shares are subject to restrictions on transfer

There is currently no market for our common shares and it is unlikely that market will develop Our

common shares are not listed on any stock exchange or automated quotation system Under our Bye-Laws our

Board of Directors has the authority to prohibit all transfers of our shares Further because an integral part of the

value of our common shares is our commitment to utilize the insurance capacity of AMIC Ltd for the benefit of

our shareholders it is unlikely that any individual or entity other than sole practitioners accounting firms and

legal firms would be interested in purchasing our common shares
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Reinsurance may not be available to us which could increase our risk of incurring losses

In order to limit the effect of large and multiple losses on our financial condition AMIC Ltd may in the

future seek reinsurance for its own account From time to time market conditions have limited the availability of

reinsurance and in some cases have prevented insurers and reinsurers from obtaining the types and amounts of

reinsurance which they consider adequate for their business needs If AMIC Ltd is unable to obtain the desired

amounts of reinsurance or if it is able to obtain such reinsurance only on terms not sufficiently favorable to

operate profitably we could be adversely affected

Difficult conditions in the economy generally may materially and adversely affect our business and results of

operations and these conditions may not improve in the near future

Current market conditions and the instability in the global credit markets present additional risks and

uncertainties for our business Depending on market conditions going forward we could incur substantial

additional realized and unrealized losses in future periods which could have an adverse impact on our results of

operations and financial condition The recent market volatility may also make it more difficult to value certain

of our securities if trading becomes less frequent As such valuations may include assumptions or estimates that

may have significant period-to-period changes that could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations or financial condition

Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and expose us to liability which

would cause our business and reputation to suffer

Despite the security measures taken by Cedar Management Limited our management company APSL and

our consultants their information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or

breached due to employee error malfeasance or other disruptions Any such breach could compromise their

networks and the information stored there could be accessed publicly disclosed lost or stolen Any such access

disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings liability under laws that protect

the privacy of personal information and regulatory penalties and damage our reputation which could adversely

affect our business

We may be impacted by claims relating to the recent financial market turmoil

We reinsure professional liability insurance for certified public accountants and attorneys The financial

institutions and financial services segment has been particularly impacted by the recent financial market turmoil

As result accountants and lawyers that service this industry may be subject to additional claims This may give

rise to increased litigation including class action suits which may involve clients of parties for which we provide

reinsurance To the extent we have claims relating to these events it could cause substantial volatility in our

financial results and could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Actual claims may exceed our reserves for losses and loss expenses which could cause our earnings to be

overstated

Our success depends on our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the businesses that we
reinsure We establish loss reserves to cover our estimated liability for the payment of all losses and loss

expenses incurred with respect to the policies we write Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of

liability Rather loss reserves are estimates of what we expect the ultimate resolution and administration of

claims will cost These estimates are based on actuarial and statistical projections and on our assessment of

currently available data as well as estimates of future trends in claims severity and frequency judicial theories of

liability and other factors Loss reserve estimates are refined as experience develops and claims are reported and

resolved Establishing an appropriate level of loss reserves is an inherently uncertain process It is therefore

possible that our reserves at any given time will prove to be inadequate
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We have estimated our net losses based on actuarial analysis of claims information Actual losses may vary

from those estimated and will be adjusted in the period in which further information becomes available To the

extent we determine that actual losses or loss expenses exceed our expectations and reserves reflected in our

financial statements we will be required to increase our reserves to reflect our changed expectations Material

additions to our reserves would adversely impact our net income and capital in future periods while having the

effect of overstating our current period earnings

Legiskztive and regulatory requirements could have material adverse effect on our business

We and our subsidiaries are required to comply with wide variety of laws and regulations applicable to

insurance or reinsurance companies The insurance and regulatory environment in particular for offshore

insurance and reinsurance companies has become subject to increased scrutiny in many jurisdictions including

in the United States In the past there have been Congressional and other initiatives in the United States

regarding increased supervision and regulation of the insurance industry It is not possible to predict the future

impact of changes in laws and regulations on our operations The cost of complying with any new legal

requirements could have material adverse effect on our business

Our Bermuda insurance subsidiary AMIC Ltd is registered as Class 3A insurer and is subject to

regulation and supervision in Bermuda The applicable Bermuda statutes and regulations generally are designed

to protect insureds and ceding insurance companies rather than shareholders or noteholders Among other things

those statutes and regulations require AMIC Ltd to

meet and maintain certain standards of liquidity and solvency

file periodic reports in accordance with the Bermuda Statutory Accounting Rules

produce annual audited statutory financial statements

produce annual audited U.S GAAP statements

comply with the ICIC and

comply with restrictions on payments of dividends and reductions of capital

Our Bermuda entities could become subject to regulation or taxation in the United States

None of our Bermuda entities are licensed or admitted as an insurer nor accredited as reinsurer in any

jurisdiction in the United States However we anticipate that in the near future the majority of our revenue will

be derived from commissions earned by APSL our Delaware subsidiary through the Agency Agreement with

CF and ii the Reinsurance Agreement between AMIC Ltd and CFwhich represent group of companies

domiciled primarily in the United States We conduct our insurance business through offices in Bermuda and do

not maintain an office nor do our personnel solicit insurance business resolve claims or conduct other insurance

business in the United States While we do not believe we are in violation of insurance laws of any jurisdiction

in the United States we cannot be certain that inquiries or challenges to our insurance and reinsurance activities

will not be raised in the future It is possible that if we were to become subject to any laws of this type at any

time in the future we would not be in compliance with the requirements of those laws

We believe that our non-U.S companies have operated and will continue to operate their respective

businesses in manner that will not cause them to be subject to U.S tax other than U.S federal excise tax on

insurance and reinsurance premiums and withholding tax on specified investment income from U.S sources on

the basis that none of them are engaged in U.S trade or business However there are no definitive standards

under current law as to those activities that constitute U.S trade or business and the determination of whether

non-U.S company is engaged in U.S trade or business is inherently factual Therefore it is possible that the

U.S Internal Revenue Service might contend that one or more of our non-U.S companies is engaged in

U.S trade or business If AMIC Ltd or any of our other non-U.S companies is engaged in U.S trade or

business and does not qualify for benefits under the applicable income tax treaty such company may be subject
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to U.S federal income taxation at regular corporate rates on its premium income from U.S sources and

investment income that is effectively connected with its U.S trade or business and ii U.S federal branch

profits tax at the rate of 30% on the earnings and profits attributable to such income All of the premium income

from U.S sources and significant portion of such companys investment income may be subject to U.S federal

income and branch profits taxes

If AMIC Ltd or any of our other non-U.S companies is engaged in U.S trade or business and qualifies

for benefits under the United States-Bermuda tax treaty U.S federal income taxation of such subsidiary will

depend on whether it maintains U.S permanent establishment and ii the relief from taxation under the

treaty generally applies to non-premium income We believe that AMIC Ltd has operated and will continue to

operate its business in manner that will not cause it to maintain U.S permanent establishment However the

determination of whether an insurance company maintains U.S permanent establishment is inherently factual

Therefore it is possible that the U.S Internal Revenue Service might successfully assert that any of our Bermuda

entities maintains U.S permanent establishment In such case such Bermuda entity may be subject to

U.S federal income tax at regular corporate rates and branch profit tax Furthermore although the provisions of

the treaty clearly apply to premium income it is uncertain whether they generally apply to other income of

Bermuda insurance company as well

We believe U.S federal income tax if imposed would be based on effectively connected or attributable

income of non-U.S company computed in manner generally analogous to that applied to the income of

U.S corporation except that all deductions and credits claimed by non-U.S company in taxable
year can be

disallowed if the company does not file U.S federal income tax return for such year Penalties may be assessed

for failure to file such return If any of our non-U.S companies is subject to such U.S federal taxation our

financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

As shareholder of our company you may have greater difficulties in protecting your interests than as

shareholder of U.S corporation

The Companies Act which applies to us and our Bermuda subsidiaries differs in material respects from

laws generally applicable to U.S corporations and their shareholders These differences may result in
your

having greater difficulties in protecting your interests as shareholder of our company than you would have as

shareholder of U.S corporation This affects among other things the circumstances under which transactions

involving an interested director are voidable whether an interested director can be held accountable for any

benefit realized in transaction with the Company what approvals are required for business combinations by the

Company with large shareholder or wholly-owned subsidiary what rights you may have as shareholder to

enforce specified provisions of the Companies Act or our Bye-laws and the circumstances under which we may
indemnify our directors and officers

downgrade in our A.M Best rating or that of CF could impair our ability to sell insurance policies or

those of CF
Our new business plan met A.M Bests higher capitalization requirements which mandate more

conservative level of risk based capital A.M Best is the most widely recognized insurance company rating

agency In September 2011 A.M Best affirmed AMIC Ltd.s financial strength rating of A- Excellent A.M
Best also affirmed that the outlook assigned to the rating is stable

Some policyholders are required to obtain insurance
coverage

from insurance companies that have an A-
Excellent rating or higher from A.M Best Additionally many producers are prohibited from placing insurance

or reinsurance with companies that are rated below A- Excellent by A.M Best A.M Best assigns ratings that

represent an independent opinion of companys ability to meet its obligations to policyholders that is of

concem primarily to policyholders brokers and agents and its rating and outlook should not be considered an

investment recommendation Because A.M Best continually monitors companies with regard to their ratings our
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ratings could change at any time and any downgrade of our current rating may impair our ability to sell

insurance policies and ultimately our financial condition and operating results

If A.M Best requires us to increase our capital in order to maintain our rating and we are unable to raise the

required amount of capital to be contributed to our subsidiaries A.M Best may downgrade our rating

Similarly if CFs A.M Bests rating should ever be downgraded this could adversely affect our ability to

solicit underwrite quote bind issue or endorse accountants professional liability and lawyers professional

liability insurance coverage under our Agency Agreement with CFor to reinsure under the Reinsurance

Agreement 50% quota share of CFs liability under insurance written by APSL on behalf of CFand

classified by CFas accountants professional liability and lawyers professional liability

Anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for third party to acquire us which makes your

investment more illiquid

Investco our subsidiary currently owns approximately 31.3% of our outstanding shares of common stock

and has the ability to purchase additional shares Shares owned by Investco remain outstanding and can be voted

by Investco at our direction which may hinder or prohibit change in control transaction not approved by us

In addition because our Statement of Share Ownership Policy limits each shareholder other than Investco to

owning no more than 20000 shares of our common stock and our Bye-laws permit our board of directors to

implement provisions requiring board approval of all transfers of common stock it may be difficult for any

individual or entity to obtain voting control of Amerlnst

Finally our Bye-laws provide for classified board of directors which could have the effect of delaying or

preventing change of control or management

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

Lease commitments

APSL leases office
space in Lisle Illinois under non cancellable lease agreement The lease is renewable

at the option of the lessee under certain conditions Minimum lease payments subsequent to December 31 2011
are as follows

2012 55801

2013 57646
2014 59568
2015 61553
2016 15513

$250081

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is not party to any material legal proceedings

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Amerlnst currently does not have public market for its common stock but the Company has historically

caused Investco to purchase shares from the Companys shareholders upon their death disability or retirement

from the practice of public accounting The repurchase price has historically been set to the year-end net book

value
per

share for the most recently completed fiscal year reduced by the amount of any dividends already paid

on the repurchased shares during the calendar year of the repurchase and any dividends the shareholder would be

entitled to receive on the repurchased shares that have not been paid In addition the BMA has authorized

Investco to purchase shares on negotiated case-by-case basis and Investco has typically negotiated share

repurchases when requested by Company shareholders

On February 25 2011 the Board of Directors amended and restated Amerlnst Statement of Share

Ownership Policy to better manage the Companys expenditures from year to year Under the new policy that

became effective immediately the Company will limit Investcos repurchase of Company stock to $500000 per

calendar year In addition Investco will only be authorized to repurchase shares without Board approval from

shareholders upon their death disability or retirement from the practice of public accounting Except as approved

by the Board negotiated purchases that do not satisfy these criteria will be discontinued for the foreseeable

future
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The Bermuda Monetary Authority has authorized Investco to purchase the Companys common shares from

shareholders who have died or retired from the practice of public accounting and also on negotiated basis

Through December 31 2011 Investco had purchased 141526 common shares from shareholders who had died

or retired for total purchase price of $3860345 The following table shows information relating to the purchase

of shares from shareholders who have died or retired from the practice of accounting as described above during

the three month period ended December 31 2011

Total Number Maximum
of Shares Number

Purchased as of Shares

Total Number Average Part of Publicly That May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid Announced Purchased Under

Purchased Per Share Plans or Program the Plans or Program

October 2011 N/A

November2011 N/A

December2011 11730 $36.52 11730 N/A

Total 11730 $36.52 11730 N/A

From time to time Investco has also purchased common shares in privately negotiated transactions

Through December 31 2011 Investco had purchased an additional 75069 common shares in such privately

negotiated transactions for total purchase price of $1109025 No such transactions occurred during the three

month period ended December 31 2011

As of December 31 2011 there were 1816 holders of record of our common shares Our Board of Directors

had adopted dividend policy to pay quarterly dividends subject to legally available funds and Board approval

Beginning in September 2005 our Board of Directors amended the dividend policy to pay semi-annual dividends

of $0.47 per share During 2011 the dividend amount paid was reduced by $39513 which represented write

back of uncashed dividends issued prior to 2006 to shareholders that we have been unable to locate During 2010

the total dividend amount paid was reduced by $38611 which represented write back of uncashed dividends

issued prior to 2005 to shareholders that we were unable to locate During 2011 and 2010 we total paid ordinary

cash dividends of $615993 and $647913 respectively net of the write back representing two semi-annual

payments of $0.47 per share The declaration of dividends by our Board of Directors is dependent upon our

capacity to insure or reinsure business profitability financial condition and other factors which the Board of

Directors may deem appropriate As described under Item Business under Bermuda law AMIC Ltd is

prohibited from declaring or paying any dividend to Amerlnst if such payment would reduce the net realizable

value of its assets to an amount less than the aggregate value of its liabilities issued share capital and share

premium accounts In addition AMIC Ltd must be able to pay its liabilities as they fall due after the payment of

dividend

Item Selected Financial Data

Not applicable

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Managements discussion and analysis MDA provides supplemental information which sets forth the

major factors that have affected our financial condition and results of operations and should be read in

conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this Form 10-K The MDA
is divided into subsections entitled Business Overview Critical Accounting Policies Results of

Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources and Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
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CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including this MDA section contains forward-looking statements

within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements

include among others statements about our beliefs plans objectives goals expectations estimates and

intentions that are subject to significant risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors

many of which are beyond our control The words may could should would believe anticipate

estimate expect intend plan target goal and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-

looking statements

All forward-looking statements by their nature are subject to risks and uncertainties Our actual future

results may differ materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements Please see the Introductory

Note and Item 1A Risk Factors of this Form 10-K for discussion of factors that could cause our actual results

to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements However the risk factors listed in Item 1A

Risk Factors or discussed in this Form 10-K should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in

conjunction with other cautionary statements that are included herein Readers are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on these forward-looking statements which reflect our managements analysis only as of the date they

are made We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future revisions we may make to

forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of

unanticipated events

The following discussion addresses our financial condition and results of operations for the periods and as

of the dates indicated

Business Overview

We are an insurance holding company based in Bermuda owned primarily by accounting firms persons

associated with accounting firms and individual CPA practitioners We were formed in response to concerns

about the pricing and availability of accountants professional liability insurance in difficult or hard market

Our mission is to be company that provides insurance protection for professional service firms and engages in

investment activities Through APSL Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Mezco which is

wholly-owned subsidiary of Amerlnst we act as the exclusive agent for CF for the purposes of soliciting

underwriting quoting binding issuing cancelling non-renewing and endorsing accountants professional

liability and lawyers professional liability insurance coverage in all 50 states of the United States and the

District of Columbia We conduct our reinsurance business through AMIC Ltd our wholly-owned subsidiary

which is registered insurer in Bermuda We are prepared subject to obtaining the required licenses and

registrations to act as direct issuer of accountants professional liability insurance policies Our investment

portfolio is held in and managed by Investco which is subsidiary of AMIC Ltd

Amerlnst has two operating segments reinsurance activity which includes investments and other

activities and insurance activity which offers professional liability solutions to professional service firms

See Note 12 Segment Information of the notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 12 of

this annual report on Form 10-K for financial information concerning these segments

The reinsurance segment had revenues of $2601937 for the
year ended December 31 2011 and $2918696

for the year ended December 31 2010 Total losses and expenses for this segment were $1379756 for the year

ended December 31 2011 and $1452800 for the year ended December 31 2010 This resulted in segment

income of $1222181 and $1465896 for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

The insurance segment had revenues of $388717 for the year ended December 31 2011 and $85249 for the

year ended December 31 2010 Operating and management expenses were $2680058 for the year ended

December 31 2011 and $2652938 for the year ended December 31 2010 This resulted in segment losses of

$2291341 and $2567689 for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively
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Amerlnst has filed an application with the U.S Patent and Trademark Office for patent on unique

financing concept called RINITSTM that it has developed to securitize insurance and reinsurance risk involving

property casualty life and health Such securitization would be by equity and debt financing of Bermuda special

purpose companies licensed as reinsurers It is Amerlnst intention to grant patent licenses to the special purpose

companies and investment banking organizations which will market the securities In addition to the license

royalties Amerlnst would manage the special purpose companies for fee and at its option could invest in them

as well However Amerlnst may not be issued patent and even if so may not be able to license such patent

In addition to the patent application Amerlnst has obtained trademark under which the concept will be

marketed

The disclosure of RINITSTM as separate operating segment was discontinued in the fourth quarter of 2010

as it no longer met the quantitative thresholds prescribed by ASC 280 Segment Reporting

Our results of operations for the years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 are discussed

below

We operate our business with no long-term debt no capital lease obligations no purchase obligations and

no off-balance sheet arrangements required to be disclosed under applicable rules of the SEC Amerlnst access

to operating cash flows is from the payment of dividends from its subsidiaries

Critical Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and
expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates The major

estimates reflected in the Companys financial statements include but are not limited to the liability for loss and

loss adjustment expenses and other than temporary impairment of investments

Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The amount that we record as our liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses is major determinant of

net income each year As discussed in more detail below under the heading Losses and Loss Adjustment

Expenses the amount that we have reserved is based on actuarial estimates which were prepared as of

December 31 2011 Based on data received from the ceding companies the insurance companies whose policies

we reinsure our independent actuary produces range of estimates with low central and high estimate

of the loss and loss adjustment expenses As of December 31 2011 the range of actuarially determined liability

for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves was as follows the low estimate was $0.8 million the high

estimate was $1.1 million and the central estimate was $1.0 million We selected reserves of $1043443 as of

December 31 2011 which is between the central and high end of the range Due to our concerns about the

severity and volatility of the type of business we reinsure and the length of time that it takes for claims to be

reported and ultimately settled our managements policy has been to reserve conservatively at the higher end of

the actuarial estimates

Other than Temporary Impairment of Investments

Declines in the fair value of investments below cost are evaluated for other than temporary impairment

losses The evaluation for other than temporary impairment losses is quantitative and qualitative process which

is subject to risks and uncertainties in the determination of whether declines in the fair value of investments are

other than temporary The risks and uncertainties include the Companys intent and ability to hold the security
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changes in general economic conditions the issuers financial condition or near term recovery prospects and the

effects of changes in interest rates Amerlnsts accounting policy requires that decline in the value of security

below its cost basis be assessed to determine if the decline is other than temporary If so the security is deemed

to be impaired and charge is recorded in net realized losses equal to the difference between the fair value and

the cost basis of the security The fair value of the impaired investment becomes its new cost basis

Results of Operations

We recorded net loss of $1069160 and $1101793 in 2011 and 2010 respectively

The net loss recorded for the year ended December 31 2011 was largely attributable to operating and

management expenses incurred by APSL which were partially offset by net realized gains on investments and

the recognition of the additional recoveries associated with the Arbitration The net loss recorded during the year

ended December 31 2010 was largely attributable to operating and management expenses incurred by APSL
which were partially offset by net realized gains on investments

Our net premiums earned were $412840 for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to $157140 for

the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $255700 or 162.7% The net premiums earned during 2011

and 2010 were attributable to net premium cessions from CF under the Reinsurance Agreement in the amounts

of $423364 and $42990 and to revisions to CAMICO premium estimates for prior years in the amounts of

10524 and $114150 respectively The increase in net premiums earned under the Reinsurance Agreement

resulted from increased cessions from CF in 2011 as result of higher level of underwriting activity under

the Agency Agreement resulting from the continued and successful marketing of the program by APSL

For the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 we recorded commission income under the Agency

Agreement of $388488 and $85051 respectively an increase of $303437 or 356.8% This increase resulted

from higher volume of premiums written under the Agency Agreement in 2011

We recorded net investment income of $409434 for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to

$405210 for the
year

ended December 30 2010 an increase of $4224 or 1.0% The increase is primarily

attributable to the decrease in investment managers fees that resulted from the reduction in the investment

portfolio and decrease in the amortization of premium on fixed income securities in 2011 as result of the

purchase of securities with lower coupon rates and premiums and the maturity of older securities with higher

coupon rates and premiums Annualized investment yield calculated as total interest and dividends divided by

the net average amount of total investments and cash and cash equivalents was 1.6% in 2011 marginal

increase from the 1.4% yield earned in 2010

Sales of securities during the year ended December 31 2011 resulted in realized gains on investments net of

impairment of $1779892 compared to $2356544 during the year ended December 31 2010 decrease of

$576652 or 24.5% The decrease in realized gains primarily related to decreased sales of equity securities in an

unrealized gain position in 2011 compared to 2010

Unrealized gain on investments was $5256349 at December 31 2011 compared to $6477553 at

December 31 2010 We consider our entire investment portfolio to be available for sale and accordingly all

investments are reported at fair value with changes in net unrealized gains and losses reflected as an adjustment

to accumulated other comprehensive income The decrease in unrealized gain on investments was due primarily

to the reduction in the value of the Companys equity portfolio Declines in the fair value of investments below

cost are evaluated for other than temporary impairment losses The evaluation for other than temporary

impairment losses is quantitative and qualitative process which is subject to risks and uncertainties in the

determination of whether declines in the fair value of investments are other than temporary The risks and

uncertainties include changes in general economic conditions the issuers financial condition or near term

recovery prospects and the effects of changes in interest rates Our accounting policy requires that decline in
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the fair value of security below its cost basis be assessed to determine if the decline is other than temporary If

so the security is deemed to be impaired and charge is recorded in net realized losses equal to the difference

between the fair value and the cost basis of the security The fair value of the impaired investment becomes its

new cost basis

The composition of the investment portfolio at December 31 2011 and 2010 is as follows

2011 2010

U.S government agency securities 6% 7%

Obligations of state and political subdivisions 38 32

Corporate debt securities

Equity securities including the hedge fund 55 59

100% 100%

For the
year

ended December 31 2011 we recorded loss and loss adjustment recoveries of $153028 as

result of the recognition of the additional recoveries awarded to the Company following the Arbitration in the

amount of $315299 net of loss and loss adjustment expenses
that resulted from reserves of $328580 established

pursuant to the Reinsurance Agreement offset by favorable development on CAMICO and PDIC For the year

ended December 31 2010 we recorded loss and loss adjustment expenses
of $26869 that resulted from reserves

of $32000 established pursuant to the Reinsurance Agreement offset by favorable development on CAMICO and

PDIC

We will continue to monitor our reserve for losses and loss
expenses

for any new claims information and

adjust our reserve for losses and loss
expenses accordingly

We recorded policy acquisition costs of $156599 for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to policy

acquisition recoveries of $12209 for the year ended December 31 2010 Policy acquisition costs which are

primarily ceding commissions paid to the ceding insurer are established as percentage of premiums written

therefore any increase or decrease in premiums written will result in similar increase or decrease in policy

acquisition costs The policy acquisition costs recorded for the year ended December 31 2011 were 37.3% of the

premiums earned under the Reinsurance Agreement of $423364 net of policy acquisition recoveries in the

amount of $1192 that were attributable to the revisions to the CAMICO premium estimates for prior years as

noted above The policy acquisition recoveries recorded during the
year

ended December 31 2010 were

attributable to recoveries in the amount of $28116 in relation to the revisions to the CAMICO premium

estimates for prior years net of policy acquisition costs representing 37.0% of the premiums earned under the

Reinsurance Agreement of $42990

The Company expensed operating and management expenses of $4056243 and $4091078 during 2011

and 2010 respectively The decline is largely attributable to reduction in professional and marketing expenses

incurred by APSL during the year compared to 2010 as result of APSL bringing in-house most of its marketing

and promotional work and reducing its reliance on third party contractors and service providers
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Fair Value of Investments

The following tables show the fair value of the Companys investments in accordance with ASC 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

in active

markets for Significant other Significant

Carrying Total fair identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs

amount value Level Level Level

December 31 2011

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency

securities 1454105 1454105 1454105

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions 8665534 8665534 8665534

Corporate debt securities .. 329208 329208 329208

Total fixed maturity

investments 10448847 10448847

Equity securities excluding

the hedge fund 10900770 10900770 10900770

Hedge fund 1395933 1395933 1395933

Total equity securities 12296703 12296703
________ __________ _________

Total investments $22745550 $22745550 $10900770 $10448847 $1395933

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

in active

markets for Significant other Significant

Carrying Total fair identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs

amount value Level Level Level

December 31 2010

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency

securities 1959588 1959588 1959588

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions 8465737 8465737 8465737

Corporate debt securities 504156 504156 504156

Total fixed maturity

investments 10929481 10929481

Equity securities excluding

the hedge fund 14145124 14145124 14145124

Hedge fund 1484884 1484884 1484884

Total equity securities 15630008 15630008
_______ __________ -_________

Total investments $26559489 $26559489 $14145124 $10929481 $1484884

There were no transfers between Levels and during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010
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The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of investments measured at fair value

on recurring basis using significant unobservable Level inputs for the
year

ended December 31 2011 and

2010

2011 2010

Balance classified as Level beginning of
year $1484884 $1389737

Total gains or losses included in earnings

Net realized gains

Change in fair value of hedge fund investments 88951 95147

Purchases or sales

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Ending balance $1395933 $1484884

There were no transfers into or from the Level hierarchy during the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010

The Company assesses whether declines in the fair value of its fixed maturity investments classified as

available-for-sale represent impairments that are other-than-temporary by reviewing each fixed maturity

investment that is impaired and determining if the Company has the intent to sell the fixed maturity

investment or if it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the fixed maturity investment

before its anticipated recovery and assessing whether credit loss exists that is where the Company expects

that the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the fixed maturity investment are less than

the amortized cost basis of the investment

The Company had no planned sales of its fixed maturity investments classified as available-for-sale that

were in an unrealized loss position at December 31 2011 In assessing whether it is more likely than not that the

Company will be required to sell fixed maturity investment before its anticipated recovery the Company
considers various factors including its future cash flow requirements legal and regulatory requirements the level

of its cash cash equivalents short term investments and fixed maturity investments available for sale in an

unrealized gain position and other relevant factors For the year ended December 31 2011 the Company did not

recognize any other-than-temporary impairments due to required sales

In evaluating credit losses the Company considers variety of factors in the assessment of fixed maturity

investment including the time period during which there has been significant decline below cost the

extent of the decline below cost and par the potential for the fixed maturity investment to recover in value

an analysis of the financial condition of the issuer the rating of the issuer and failure of the issuer of

the fixed maturity investment to make scheduled interest or principal payments

If we conclude security is other-than-temporarily impaired we write down the amortized cost of the

security to fair value with charge to net realized investment gains losses in the Consolidated Statement of

Operations Gross unrealized losses on the investment portfolio as of December 31 2011 and December 31

2010 relating to two and six fixed maturity securities and two and no equity securities amounted to $39791 and

$84406 respectively This decrease was primarily attributable to the increase in the fair value of fixed maturity

securities as result of the decline in interest rates during the year The Company has the intent and ability to

hold these securities either to maturity or until the fair value recovers above the adjusted cost The unrealized

losses on these available for sale fixed maturity securities were not as result of credit collateral or structural

issues As result of the decline in fair value below cost the Company recorded total other-than-temporary

impairment charge of $152450 and $123310 on two equity securities during the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively
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Our fixed income equity and hedge fund portfolios are invested in accordance with written Investment

Policy Statement adopted by our Board of Directors We engage professional advisors to manage day to day

investment matters under the oversight of our Investment Committee

Our fixed income portfolio is managed with the target objeclives of achieving an annualized rate of return

for the trailing 5-year period of 250 basis points over the Consumer Price Index and total returns commensurate

with Merrill Lynchs U.S Domestic Index Our overall fixed income portfolio is required to have at least an

SP rating an A2 Moodys rating or an equivalent rating from comparable rating agencies

Our equity securities are managed by an external large cap value advisor Our investment approach is to

focus on increasing the fair market value of our equity securities by investing in companies that may or may not

be paying dividend but whose market values may increase over time Some of the key factors we consider in

prospective company to invest in include the discount to value and the quality of the management team

Our equity portfolios are managed with the target objectives of achieving an annualized rate of return over

trailing 3-year to 5-year period of 400 basis points over the Consumer Price Index total returns at least equal to

representative benchmarks such as the various SP indices and ranking in the top half of the universe of other

actively managed equity funds with similarobjectives and risk profiles

Our hedge fund portfolio is managed to reduce overall portfolio risk and it is required to invest over all

major strategies

Under existing accounting principles generally accepted in the United States we are required to recognize

certain assets at their fair value in our consolidated balance sheets This includes our fixed maturity investments

and equity securities In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of FASBs ASC

820 fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date ASC 820 establishes three-level

valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements The valuation hierarchy is based upon whether the

inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability are observable or unobservable in the market at the measurement

date with quoted market prices being the highest level Level and unobservable inputs being the lowest level

Level fair value measurement will fall within the level of the hierarchy based on the input that is

significant to determining such measurement The three levels are defined as follows

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology that are quoted prices unadjusted for

identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted market prices

unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets Level inputs include quoted prices for

similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets

that are not active and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either

directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology that are unobservable for the asset or liability

At each measurement date we estimate the fair value of the security using various valuation techniques We

utilize to the extent available quoted market prices in active markets or observable market inputs in estimating

the fair value of our investments When quoted market prices or observable market inputs are not available we

utilize valuation techniques that rely on unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value of investments The

following describes the valuation techniques we used to determine the fair value of investments held as of

December 31 2011 and what level within the fair value hierarchy each valuation technique resides

U.S government agency securities Comprised primarily of bonds issued by the Federal Home Loan

Bank the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Farm Credit Bank and the Federal
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National Mortgage Association The fair values of U.S government agency securities are priced using

the spread above the risk-free U.S Treasury yield curve As the yields for the risk-free U.S Treasury

yield curve are observable market inputs the fair values of U.S government agency securities are

included in the Level fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers that there is liquid market for the

types of securities held Broker quotes are not used for fair value pricing

Obligations of state and political subdivisions Comprised of fixed income obligations of state and

local governmental municipalities The fair values of these securities are based on quotes and current

market spread relationships and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers

that there is liquid market for the types of securities held Broker quotes are not used for fair value

pricing

Corporate debt securities Comprised of bonds issued by corporations The fair values of these

securities are based on quotes and current market spread relationships and are included in the Level

fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers that there is liquid market for the types of securities held

Broker quotes are not used for fair value pricing

Equity securities at fair value Comprised primarily of investments in the common stock of publicly

traded companies in the U.S All of the Companys equities are included in the Level fair value

hierarchy The Company receives prices based on closing exchange prices from independent pricing

sources to measure fair values for the equities

Hedge fund Comprised of hedge fund whose objective is to seek attractive long-term returns with

lower volatility by investing in range of diversified investment strategies The fund invests in

diversified pool of hedge fund managers generally across six different strategies long/short equities

long/short credit macro multi-strategy opportunistic event-driven and portfolio hedge The fair value

of the hedge fund is based on the net asset value of the fund as reported by the external fund manager

The use of net asset value as an estimate of the fair value for investments in certain entities that

calculate net asset value is permitted practical expedient The fair value of our hedge fund is included

in the Level fair value hierarchy

To validate prices we complete quantitative analyses to compare the performance of the above investments

to the performance of appropriate benchmarks with significant differences identified and investigated

There have been no material changes to any of our valuation techniques from what was used as of

December 31 2010 Since the fair value of financial instrument is an estimate of what willing buyer would

pay for our asset if we sold it we will not know the ultimate value of our financial instruments until they are

sold We believe the valuation techniques utilized provide us with the best estimate of the price that would be

received to sell our assets or transfer our liabilities in an orderly transaction between participants at the

measurement date

Though current market conditions appear to have improved recently there is still the potential for further

instability This could present additional risks and uncertainties for our business and make it more difficult to

value certain of our securities if trading becomes less frequent As such valuations may include assumptions and

estimates that may have significant period-to-period changes that could have material adverse effect on our

results of operations or financial condition

As of December 31 2011 our total investments were $22745550 decrease of $3813939 or 14.4%

from $26559489 at December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily due to sales of certain equity securities the

maturity of two fixed maturity securities and the decrease in the fair value of certain equity securities as result

of adverse market conditions The cash and cash equivalents balance decreased from $970697 at December 31

2010 to $904485 at December 31 2011 decrease of $66212 or 6.8% The amount of cash and cash

equivalents varies depending on the maturities of fixed term investments and on the level of funds invested in

money market funds The restricted cash and cash equivalents balance increased from $84256 at December 31
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2010 to $435924 at December 31 2011 an increase of $351668 or 417.4% The increase is due to the timing of

sales and maturities of investments held as restricted cash at December 31 2011 that have not yet been

reinvested The ratio of cash and total investments to total liabilities at December 31 2011 was 8.251 compared

to ratio of 11.041 at December 31 2010

The decrease in total cash and investments at December 31 2011 compared to December 31 2010 resulted

primarily from net cash outflows to fund the operations of APSL $576789 related to share repurchases

during 2011 dividends of $615993 paid during 2011 and the decrease in the fair value of certain equity

securities as result of adverse market conditions These reductions were partially offset by positive cash inflows

in relation to net investment income

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs consist of settlement of losses and expenses under our reinsurance treaties and funding

day-to-day operations During the continued implementation of our business plan our management expects to

meet these cash needs from cash flows arising from our investment portfolio Because substantially all of our

assets are marketable securities we expect that we will have sufficient flexibility to provide for unbudgeted cash

needs which may arise without resorting to borrowing subject to regulatory limitations

Because of CNA election not to renew its reinsurance agreement with AMIC Ltd in 2009 we experienced

significant decrease in our net premiums earned which has adversely affected our revenues over the past two

years As result we have experienced decrease in our total investments in 2010 and 2011 due to net cash

outflows in order to fund our operational expenses The reduction in the value of our investment portfolio has

been accompanied by corresponding reduction in our shareholders equity during this two-year period Unless

we are able to significantly increase our revenues under new or existing agency and/or reinsurance agreements in

future periods we would expect the value of our investment portfolio and our shareholders equity to continue to

decrease as investment assets are used to cover our revenue shortfall

The assumed reinsurance balances receivable represents the current assumed premiums receivable less

commissions payable to the fronting carriers and recoveries in relation to reinsurance contacts As of

December 31 2011 the balance was $183518 compared to $45909 as of December 31 2010 The increase

resulted from higher level of premiums assumed under the Reinsurance Agreement

The assumed reinsurance payable represents current reinsurance losses payable to the fronting carriers As

of December 31 2011 the balance was $86685 compared to $76918 as of December 31 2010 This balance

fluctuates due to the timing of reported losses

Deferred policy acquisition costs which represent the deferral of ceding commission expense related to

premiums not yet earned increased from $35060 at December 31 2010 to $146226 at December 31 2011 The

increase in deferred policy acquisition costs in 2011 was due to the increase in both net premiums written and

unearned premiums assumed under the Reinsurance Agreement compared to the prior year The ceding

commission rate under the Reinsurance Agreement is approximately 37%

Prepaid expenses and other assets were $378257 at December 31 2011 an increase of 121.7% from

December 31 2010 The balance primarily relates to prepaid directors and officers liability insurance costs

prepaid directors retainer and premiums due to APSL under the Agency Agreement The increase in the

balance was attributable to an increase in premiums due to APSL arising from higher level of underwriting

activity under the Agency Agreement in 2011

Accrued expense and other liabilities primarily represents premiums payable by APSL to CFunder the

Agency Agreement and expenses accrued relating largely to professional fees The balance increased from

$1126409 at December 31 2010 to $1396332 at December 31 2011 an increase of $269923 or 24% The

increase in the balance was attributable to an increase in premiums payable by APSL to CF as result of

higher level of underwriting activity under the Agency Agreement in 2011
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Amerlnst paid two semi-annual dividends of $0.47 per
share during 2011 and 2010 During 2011 the total

dividend amount was reduced by $39513 which represents write back of uncashed dividends issued prior to

2006 to shareholders that we have been unable to locate During 2010 the total dividend amount was reduced by

$38611 which represents write back of uncashed dividends issued prior to 2005 to shareholders that we were

unable to locate Since Amerlnst began paying consecutive dividends in 1995 our original shareholders have

received approximately $18.87 in cumulative dividends per share which when measured by total rate of return

calculation has resulted in an effective annual rate of return of approximately 9.85% from the inception of the

Company based on per share purchase price of $8.33 paid by the original shareholders and using book value

of $33.23 per share as of December 31 2011

Total dividends declared were $615993 and $647913 in 2011 and 2010 respectively net of the recorded

write backs Continuation of dividend payments is subject to the Board of Directors continuing evaluation of our

level of surplus compared to our capacity to accept more business One of our objectives is to retain sufficient

surplus to enable the successful implementation of our new business plan

AMIC Ltd.s ability to pay dividends to Amerlnst is subject to the provisions of the Bermuda insurance and

companies laws and the requirement to provide the ceding companies with collateral Under the Companies Act

AMIC Ltd would be prohibited from declaring or paying dividend at December 31 2011 if such payment

would reduce the realizable value of its assets to an amount less than the aggregate value of its liabilities issued

share capital and share premium accounts As of December 31 2011 approximately $32 million was available

for the declaration of dividends to shareholders However due to the requirement to provide the ceding

companies with collateral approximately $22 million was available for the payment of dividends to the

shareholders In addition AMIC Ltd must be able to pay its liabilities as they fall due after the payment of

dividend Our ability to pay dividends to common shareholders and to pay our operating expenses is dependent

on cash dividends from our subsidiaries The payment of such dividends by AMIC Ltd including its subsidiary

Investco to us is also limited under Bermuda law by the Insurance Act and Related Regulations which require

that AMIC Ltd maintain minimum levels of solvency and liquidity For the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 these requirements have been met as follows

Statutory

Capital Surplus Relevant Assets

Minimum Actual Minimum Actual

December31 2011 $1000000 $33315313 $9342872 $10815518

December 31 2010 $1000000 $32209291 $9231848 $10869403

The Bermuda Monetary Authority has authorized Investco to purchase the Companys common shares from

shareholders who have died or retired from the practice of public accounting and on negotiated basis Through

March 2012 Investco had purchased 141526 common shares from shareholders who had died or retired for

total purchase price of $3860345 From time to time Investco has also purchased shares in privately negotiated

transactions Through that date Investco had purchased an additional 75069 common shares in such privately

negotiated transactions for total purchase price of $1109025

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The consolidated financial statements include our estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment

expenses LAE for our insurance operations LAE is determined utilizing both case-basis evaluations and

actuarial projections which together represent an estimate of the ultimate net cost of all unpaid losses and LAE

incurred through December 31 of each year These estimates are subject to the effect of trends in future claim

severity and frequency The estimates are continually reviewed and as experience develops and new information

becomes known the liability is adjusted as appropriate and reflected in current financial reports The anticipated

effect of inflation is implicitly considered when estimating liabilities for losses and LAE Future average severity

is projected based on historical trends adjusted for anticipated changes in underwriting standards policy

provisions and general economic trends These anticipated trends are monitored based on actual developments

and are modified as necessary
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An actuarial review and projection was performed for us by our independent actuary as of December 31

2011 We review the actuarial estimates throughout the year for the possible impact on our financial position

Loss reserves relate only to accountants and attorneys professional liability from PDIC CAMICO and

CF programs and were calculated under the methodologies described below

PDIC was new program for the Company in 2003 The relationship with the carrier of that insurance

ended on December 31 2003 Therefore policies written during 2003 are the only ones we have reinsured To

calculate the policy year ultimate losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses for PDIC the actuary applied

incurred loss development incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson BF and expected loss methods to the actual PDIC

experience In the calculations the actuary used industry incurred loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses

development patterns
and an priori loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses

ratio for use in the BF and

expected loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses
method calculations The priori loss and allocated loss

adjustment expenses ratio was selected judgmentally based on the Companys unpaid claim liability review as of

December 31 2010 The actuary judgmentally selected low and high scenario loss ratio estimates around the

central loss ratio estimates The low and high scenario ultimate loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses

estimates were calculated by multiplying net earned premium through December 31 2011 by the low and high

scenario loss ratio selections The final reported claim was closed during 2011 and although we no longer

anticipate we will be liable for further claims related to this period of coverage there is remote possibility

further claims could be reported

CAMICO was new program for the Company in 2005 To calculate the policy year ultimate losses and

allocated loss adjustment expenses
for CAMICO the actuary applied paid and incurred loss development paid

and incurred BF and expected loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses ratio methods to the actual CAMICO

experience as of December 31 2011 In the calculations the actuary used industry benchmark paid and incurred

loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses development patterns The priori loss and allocated loss adjustment

expenses ratios used in the BF and expected loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses method calculations

were selected judgmentally based on the Companys unpaid claim liability review of CAMICO experience as of

December 31 2010 Low and high scenario ultimate loss and allocated loss adjustment expense estimates were

calculated by selecting and applying lower and higher priori loss and allocated loss adjustment expense ratios

for use in the actuarial methods and by selecting low and high estimates of ultimate loss and allocated loss

adjustment expense amounts from the results of the applied actuarial methods

CFwas new program for the Company in 2010 To calculate the policy year ultimate losses and

allocated loss adjustment expenses for CF the actuary applied incurred loss development incurred BF and

expected loss and allocated loss adjustment expense ratio methods to the actual CF experience as of

December 31 2011 In the calculations the actuary used an industry benchmark incurred loss and allocated loss

adjustment expense development pattern The priori loss and allocated loss adjustment expenses ratio used in

the BF and expected loss and allocated loss adjustment expense method calculations was selected based on

previous work performed for Amerlnst related to the pricing of accountants professional liability insurance The

actuary judgmentally selected low and high scenario loss ratio estimates around the central loss ratio estimate

The low and high scenario ultimate loss and allocated loss adjustment expense estimates were calculated by

multiplying net earned premium through December 31 2011 by the low and high scenario loss ratio selections
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The following table shows the development of the estimated liability for the previous ten years of the

Companys operations

ANALYSIS OF LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES DEVELOPMENT
Thousands of US Dollars

Year Ended December 31

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Gross Liability for Loss and

LAE Reserves $29243 $30479 $28724 $29702 $28885 $28161 $27411 $24416 $1510 $1203 $1043

Reinsurance Recoverable

for Unpaid Loss and LAE

Reserves 674 674

Net Liability for Unpaid

Losses and LAE

Reserves $28569 $29805 $28724 $29702 $28885 $28161 $27411 $24416 $1510 $1203 $1043

Year Ended December 31

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Losses Re-estimated as of

One Year Later $27993 $25193 $27210 $27454 $26323 $25521 $22139 $21104 $1490 $1110

Two Years Later 23514 23676 24962 24893 23493 19780 18006 20957 1399

Three Years Later 21997 21429 22400 22062 17752 15143 17803 20873

Four Years Later 19750 18867 19570 16321 13916 15011 17740

Five Years Later 17188 16037 13836 14115 13844 14931

Six Years Later 14688 11783 12976 14076 13784

Seven Years Later 11221 11120 12953 13974

Eight Years Later 10707 11120 12894

Nine Years Later 10707 11120

Ten Years Later 10707

Cumulative Redundancy

Deficiency 17862 18685 15830 15728 15101 13230 9671 3543 111 93

Cumulative Amount Paid

Through

One Year Later 3851 3697 3557 4678 3820 3314 3970 19902 334 322

Two Years Later 6600 6165 6943 7729 6166 6310 17208 20195 656

Three Years Later 8145 7915 8995 9049 8176 14653 17406 20427

Four Years Later 8736 8954 9690 10225 13675 14759 17540

Five Years Later 9174 9079 10149 13957 13687 14830

Six Years Later 9240 9205 12885 13969 13747

Seven Years Later 9299 11120 12892 13974

Eight Years Later 10707 11120 12894

Nine Years Later 10707 11120

Ten Years Later 10707

The above table of losses re-estimated has been prepared on net basisi.e loss and loss adjustment

expenses and reinsurance recoveries receivable have not been grossed-up The table has been prepared on net

basis due to the relative immateriality of reinsurance balances when considered in relation to total loss and loss

adjustment expense reserves and due to the costs of providing such information relative to any benefits of

providing it

The above table presents the development of balance sheet liabilities for 2001 through 2011 as of year-end

2011 and includes the CNA program liabilities through 2008 The top line of the table shows the original

recorded unpaid liability for losses and LAE recorded at the balance sheet date for each of the indicated years

This liability represents the estimated amount of losses and LAE for claims arising in all prior years both paid
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and unpaid at the balance sheet date including losses that had been incurred but not yet reported to the

Company The upper portion of the table shows the experience as of the end of each succeeding year The

estimate is increased or decreased as more information becomes known about the frequency and severity of

claims

The cumulative redundancy deficiency represents the aggregate change in the estimates over all prior

years For example the 2005 liability has developed $15101000 redundancy which has been reflected in

income in subsequent years as the reserves were re-estimated

The lower section of the table shows the cumulative amount paid in respect of the previously recorded

liability as of the end of each succeeding year For example the 2005 year end liability was originally

$28885000 As of December 31 2011 we had paid $13747000 of the currently estimated $13784000 of

losses and LAE that had been incurred for 2005 and prior years through the end of 2011 thus an estimated

$37000 in losses incurred through 2005 remain unpaid as of the current financial statement date

In evaluating this information it should be understood that each amount includes the effects of all changes

in amounts for prior periods This table does not present accident or policy year development data which readers

may be more accustomed to analyzing Conditions and trends that have affected development of liabilities in the

past may not necessarily occur in the future Accordingly it may not be appropriate to extrapolate future

redundancies or deficiencies based on this table

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements required to be disclosed under Item 303a4 of Regulation S-K

promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements required by this Item are listed below
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

of Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of

operations and other comprehensive loss changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then

ended Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index and included in Item 15

These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement

schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have

nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31 2011 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion

such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements

taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is Deloitte Touche Ltd

Hamilton Bermuda

March 29 2012
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2011 and 2010

expressed in U.S dollars

2011 2010

ASSETS

Investments Notes and

Fixed maturity investments at fair value amortized cost $9914515 and

$10739265 $10448847 $10929481

Equity securities at fair value cost $7574686 and $9342671 12296703 15630008

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 22745550 26559489

Cash and cash equivalents 904485 970697

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 435924 84256

Assumed reinsurance premiums receivable 183518 45909

Accrued investment income 94539 117226

Property and equipment Note 745784 716230

Deferred policy acquisition costs 146226 35060

Prepaid expenses and other assets 378257 170606

TOTAL ASSETS $25634283 $28699473

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses Note 1043443 1203016

Unearned premiums 392595 94756

Assumed reinsurance payable 86685 76918

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1396332 1126409

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2919055 2501099

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Common shares $1 par value 2011 and 2010 2000000 shares authorized

995253 issued and outstanding 995253 995253

Additional paid-in-capital 6287293 6287293

Retained earnings 17411533 19096686

Accumulated other comprehensive income 5256349 6477553

Shares held by Subsidiary 311633 and 295881 shares at cost 7235200 6658411

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 22715228 26198374

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY $25634283 $28699473

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

expressed in U.S dollars

2011 2010

REVENUES

Net premiums earned 412840 157140

Commission income 388488 85051

Net investment income Note 409434 405210

Net realized gain on investments Note 1779892 2356544

TOTAL REVENUES 2990654 3003945

LOSSES AND EXPENSES

Losses and loss adjustment recoveries expenses Note 153028 26869

Policy acquisition costs recoveries 156599 12209

Operating and management expenses Note 4056243 4091078

TOTAL LOSSES AND EXPENSES 4059814 4105738

LOSS BEFORE TAX 1069160 1101793

Income tax expense Note 10

NET LOSS AFTER TAX 1069160 1101793

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Net unrealized holding gains arising during the period 558688 2223044

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net loss 1779892 2356544

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 1221204 133500

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $2290364 $1235293

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 1.54 1.52

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year 693423 723690

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

expressed in U.S dollars

BALANCE AT JANUARY

2010

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized losses on

securities net of

reclassification

adjustment

Purchase of shares by

subsidiary

Dividends $0.94 per share

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized losses on

securities net of

reclassification

adjustment

Purchase of shares by

subsidiary

Dividends $0.94 per share

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31

133500

1406799 1406799

647913

2011 $995253 $6287293 $17411533 5256349 $7235200$22715228

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Shares

Held by

Subsidiary

Total

Shareholders

Equity

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Capital Earnings Income Losses

$995253 $6287293 $20846392 6611053

1101793

133500

647913
__________

$525 1612 $29488379

1101793

2010 $995253 $6287293 $19096686

1069160

6477553 $665841 $26198374

1069160

1221204 1221204

576789 576789

615993615993
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

expressed in U.S dollars

2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss $1069160 $1101793

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities

Amortization of net premiums on investments 43856 73996

Depreciation and amortization on property and equipment 174186 65433

Net realized gains on sale of investments 1779892 2356544

Changes in assets and liabilities

Assumed reinsurance premiums receivable 137609 45909
Funds deposited with reinsurer 113382

Accrued investment income 22687 26375

Deferred policy acquisition costs 111166 35060

Prepaid expenses and other assets 207651 44492

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses 159573 307462

Unearned premiums 297839 94756

Assumed reinsurance payable 9767 71932

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 269923 399090

Net cash used in operating activities 2646793 3153926

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Movement in restricted cash and cash equivalents 351668 649764

Purchases of property and equipment 203740 681506

Purchases of available-for-sale securities 3036872 6724710

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 6365643 8438258

Proceeds from maturities of fixed maturity investments 1000000 1025000

Net cash provided by investing activities 3773363 2706806

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid 615993 647913

Purchase of shares by subsidiary net 576789 1406799

Net cash used in financing activities 1192782 2054712

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 66212 2501832

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR 970697 3472529

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF YEAR 904485 970697

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd Amerlnst or the Company was formed under the laws of Bermuda in

1998 The Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Amerlnst Insurance Company Ltd AMIC Ltd
and its predecessor Amerlnst Insurance Company Inc AIIC Inc were engaged in the reinsurance of claims-

made insurance policies of participants in an American Institute of Certified Public Accountants AICPA
sponsored insurance program that provides accountants professional liability insurance coverage AICPA
Plan through December 31 2008

The reinsurance activity of AMIC Ltd depends upon agreements entered into with outside parties

Entry into Agency Agreement

On September 25 2009 APSL entered into an agency agreement the Agency Agreement with The

North River Insurance Company United States Fire Insurance Company Crum Forster Indemnity Company

Crum and Forster Insurance Company and Crum Forster Specialty Insurance Company collectively CF
pursuant to which CF appointed APSL as its exclusive agent for the purposes of soliciting underwriting

quoting binding issuing cancelling non-renewing and endorsing accountants professional liability and

lawyers professional liability insurance
coverage

in all 50 states of the United States and the District of

Columbia The initial term of the Agency Agreement is for four
years

with automatic one year
renewals

Entry into Reinsurance Agreement

We conduct our reinsurance business through AMIC Ltd our subsidiary which is registered insurer in

Bermuda On September 25 2009 AMIC Ltd entered into professional liability quota share agreement with

CFthe Reinsurance Agreement pursuant to which CF agreed to cede and AMIC Ltd agreed to accept as

reinsurance 50% quota share of CF liability under insurance written by APSL on behalf of CF and

classified by CF as accountants professional liability and lawyers professional liability subject to AMIC

Ltd.s surplus limitations The initial term of the Reinsurance Agreement is for four
years

with automatic

one-year renewals thereafter

Historical Relationship with CNA

Historically the primary business activity of our wholly owned insurance subsidiary AMIC Ltd had been

to act as reinsurer of professional liability insurance policies that were issued under the Professional Liability

Insurance Plan sponsored by the AICPA The AICPA plan offers professional liability coverage to accounting

firms and individual CPAs in all 50 states

Our reinsurance activity depends upon agreements with outside parties AMIG our predecessor entity

began our reinsurance relationship with CNA in 1993

On January 2009 AMIC Ltd received written notice from CNA that CNA did not intend to renew the

reinsurance program encompassed by the Reinsurance Treaties In 2008 the business relationship with CNA
accounted for approximately 95% of Amerlnsts net premiums earned

On May 15 2009 AMIC Ltd and CNA entered into Commutation Agreement whereby effective

January 2009 in exchange for payment of portion of the reserves which we had previously set aside CNA

assumed responsibility for prior years undetermined and unpaid liabilities
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Historical Relationship with CAMJCO

From June 2005 through May 31 2009 we were party to reinsurance contract with CAMICO Mutual

Insurance Company CAMICO California-based writer of accountants professional liability business

We decided not to renew the CAMICO contract and permitted the contract to expire pursuant to its terms on

May 31 2009 We remain potentially liable for claims related to coverage through May 31 2009

VSC Payment

On July 22 2009 the Company received payment of $500891 from FFG Insurance Company formerly

known as Virginia Surety Company VSC in satisfaction of certain recoveries not previously remitted by

VSC under retrocession contracts between the Company and VSC for the years 1989-1993 The $500891

payment was recorded as decrease in losses and loss adjustment expenses for the year ended December 31

2009 Following this payment the Company initiated arbitration with VSC the Arbitration to seek additional

recoveries in respect of unpaid losses unpaid premiums fees and interest During the arbitration VSC conceded

that $25785 in unpaid premiums was due and payment was remitted to the Company On October 2011 the

Company was formally awarded $289514 as result of the Arbitrations final outcome The award represented

unpaid losses of $241943 fees of $11280 and interest of $36291 The total net award of $315299 from VSC

was recorded as decrease in losses and loss adjustment expenses in the third quarter of 2011

Attorneys Professional Liability Coverage

On January 2003 we entered into 15% participation of Professionals Direct Insurance Companys

PDIC attorneys professional liability 1St excess cover This participation terminated on December 31 2003

The final reported claim was closed during 2011 and although we no longer anticipate we will be liable for

further claims related to this period of coverage there is remote possibility further claims could be reported

RINITSTM

Amerlnst has filed an application for U.S patent on unique financing concept called RINITSTM that it

has developed to securitize insurance and reinsurance risk involving property casualty life and health Such

securitization would be by equity and debt financing of Bermuda special purpose companies licensed as

reinsurers It is Amerlnsts intention to grant patent licenses to the special purpose companies and investment

banking organizations which will market the securities In addition to the license royalties Amerlnst would

manage the special purpose companies for fee and at its option could invest in them as well However

Amerlnst may not be issued patent and even if so may not be able to license such patent

In addition to the patent application Amerlnst has obtained trademark under which the concept will be

marketed

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include the accounts of Amerlnst and its

operating wholly-owned subsidiaries Amerlnst Mezco Ltd Mezco AMIC Ltd APSL and Amerlnst

Investment Company Ltd Investco Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on

consolidation
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could

differ from those estimates The major estimates reflected in the Companys financial statements include but are

not limited to the liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses

Premiums

Premiums assumed are earned on pro rata basis over the terms of the underlying policies to which they

relate Premiums assumed relating to the unexpired portion of policies in force at the balance sheet date are

recorded as unearned premiums

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Ceding commissions related to assumed reinsurance agreements are deferred and amortized pro rata over

the terms of the underlying policies to which they relate

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses

The liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses includes case basis estimates of reported losses

plus supplemental amounts for projected losses incurred but not reported IBNR calculated based upon loss

projections utilizing certain actuarial assumptions and AMIC Ltd.s historical loss experience supplemented with

industry data The aggregate liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at year end represents

managements best estimate based upon the available data of the amount necessary to cover the ultimate cost of

loss based upon an actuarial analysis prepared by independent actuaries However because of the volatility

inherent in professional liability coverage actual loss experience may not conform to the assumptions used in

determining the estimated amounts for such liability at the balance sheet date Accordingly the ultimate liability

could be significantly in excess of or less than the amount indicated in the financial statements As adjustments to

these estimates become necessary
such adjustments are reflected in current operations AMIC Ltd does not

discount its loss reserves for purposes
of these financial statements

The anticipated effect of inflation is implicitly considered when estimating liabilities for unpaid losses and

loss adjustment expenses Future average severities are projected based on historical trends adjusted for

anticipated trends are monitored based on actual developments and are modified if necessary

Investments

Amerlnst classifies all of its investments as available-for-sale Accordingly Amerlnst reports these

securities at their estimated fair values with unrealized holding gains and losses being reported as other

comprehensive income Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are accounted for by specifically

identifying the cost and are reflected in the income statement in the period of sale

Declines in the fair value of investments below cost are evaluated for other than temporary impairment

losses The evaluation for other than temporary impairment losses is quantitative and qualitative process which

is subject to risks and uncertainties in the determination of whether declines in the fair value of investments are

other than temporary The risks and uncertainties include the Companys intent and ability to hold the security

changes in general economic conditions the issuers financial condition or near term recovery prospects and the

effects of changes in interest rates Amerlnsts accounting policy requires that decline in the value of security
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AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

below its cost basis be assessed to determine if the decline is other than temporary If so the security is deemed

to be impaired and charge is recorded in net realized losses equal to the difference between the fair value and

the cost basis of the security The fair value of the impaired investment becomes its new cost basis

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows Amerlnst considers all money market funds and highly liquid

debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Properly and Equipment

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method with estimated useful lives ranging

from to years Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and

equipment are capitalized Expenditures for normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred

Developmental costs for internal use software are capitalized in accordance with the provisions of ASC

350-40 generally when the preliminary project stage is completed management commits to funding and it is

probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the functions intended

Capitalized internal use software costs are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

generally for period not to exceed years

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the

periods in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled valuation allowance is

provided if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Management

evaluates the reliability of the deferred tax assets and assesses the need for additional valuation allowance

annually

Net income per common share

Basic earnings per share is determined as net income available to common shareholders divided by the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period There are no dilutive securities

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued amendments to disclosure

requirements for common fair value measurement These amendments effective for the interim and annual

periods beginning on or after December 15 2011 early adoption is prohibited result in common definition of

fair value and common requirements for measurement and disclosure under U.S GAAP and IFRS

Consequently the amendments change some fair value measurement principles and disclosure requirements The

implementation of this amended accounting guidance is not expected to have material impact on the

consolidated financial statements
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Comprehensive Income

In June 2011 the FASB issued new guidance revising the manner in which entities present comprehensive

income in their financial statements The option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the

statement of changes in shareholders equity is eliminated Components of comprehensive income may be

reported in either continuous statement of comprehensive income or two separate but consecutive

statements The new requirements will become effective for the interim and annual periods beginning on or after

December 15 2011 and require retrospective application early adoption is permitted As the new guidance does

not change the items that constitute net income and/or other comprehensive income the timing of

reclassifications from other comprehensive income to net income or the earnings per
share computation we

expect that adoption of this guidance will not impact our results of operations financial condition or liquidity

The Company has determined that all other recently issued accounting pronouncements do not apply to its

operations

PLEDGED ASSETS

Pursuant to the reinsurance agreements AMIC Ltd is required to provide the ceding companies with

collateral to secure its obligations to them At December 31 2011 and 2010 AMIC Ltd provided CAMICO with

Letter of Credit held by Comerica Bank with supporting investments with carrying value of $2813484 and

$2713631 respectively Also at December 31 2011 and 2010 AMIC Ltd had provided CFwith

Section 114 Trust held by Comerica Bank with restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments with

carrying value of $7321378 and $7039652 respectively

INVESTMENTS

The cost or amortized cost gross unrealized holding gains and losses and estimated fair value of fixed

maturity investments by major security type and equity securities at December 31 2011 and 2010 are as

follows

Cost or Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2011

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency securities 1446223 7882 1454105

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 8135268 531523 1257 8665534

Corporate debt securities 333024 3816 329208

Total fixed maturity investments 9914515 539405 5073 10448847

Equity securities 6574686 4360802 34718 10900770

Hedge fund 1000000 395933 1395933

Total equity securities 7574686 4756735 34718 12296703

Total investments $17489201 $5296140 $39791 $22745550
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Cost or Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2010

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency securities 1931335 28253 1959588

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 8307102 243041 84406 8465737

Corporate debt securities 500828 3328 504156

Total fixed maturity investments 10739265 274622 84406 10929481

Equity securities 8342671 5802453 14145124

Hedge fund 1000000 484884 1484884

Total equity securities 9342671 6287337 15630008

Total investments $20081936 $6561959 $84406 $26559489

The following tables summarize the Companys fixed maturity and equity securities in an unrealized loss

position and the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time the security has continuously

been in an unrealized loss position

12 months or greater Less than 12 months Total

Estimated

Fair Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

December 31 2011

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency securities

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 200046 1257 200046 1257
Corporate debt securities 329208 3816 329208 3816
Total fixed maturity investments 529254 5073 529254 5073

Equity securities 864871 34718 864871 34718
Hedge fund

Total equity securities 864871 34718 864871 34718

Total investments $1394125 $39791 $1394125 $39791
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As of December 31 2011 there were approximately four securities in an unrealized loss position with an

estimated fair value of $1394125 Of these securities no securities have been in an unrealized loss position for

12 months or greater As of December 31 2011 none of these securities were considered to be other than

temporarily impaired The Company has no intent to sell and it is not more likely than not that the Company will

be required to sell these securities before their fair values recover above the adjusted cost The unrealized losses

from these securities were not result of credit collateral or structural issues

12 months or greater Less than 12 months Total

Estimated

Fair Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

December 31 2010

Fixed maturity investments

U.S government agency securities ..

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 497924 2445 1573160 81961 2071084 84406

Corporate debt securities

Total fixed maturity investments 497924 2445 1573160 81961 2071084 84406

Equity securities

Hedge fund

Total equity securities

Total investments $497924 $2445 $1573160 $81961 $2071084 $84406

As of December 31 2010 there were approximately six securities in an unrealized loss position with an

estimated fair value of $2071084 Of these securities there is one security that has been in an unrealized loss

position for 12 months or greater As of December 31 2010 none of these securities were considered to be other

than temporarily impaired The unrealized losses from these securities were not result of credit collateral or

structural issues

The cost or amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity investments at December 31 2011 and

2010 by contractual maturity are shown below Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities as

borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations without penalties

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

December 31 2011

Due in one year or less 510949 516938

Due after one year through five
years 5885709 6210596

Due after five
years through ten years 3517857 3721313

Due after ten years

Total $9914515 $10448847
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Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

December 31 2010

Due in one year or less 1001198 1002080
Due after one year through five years 7398409 7633631
Due after five years through ten years 2339658 2293770
Due after ten years

Total $10739265 $10929481

Information on sales and maturities of investments during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and

2010 are as follows

2011 2010

Total proceeds on sales of available-for-sale securities $6365643 $8438258
Total proceeds from maturities of fixed maturity investments 1000000 1025000
Gross gains on sales 1955672 3394772
Gross losses on sales 23330 914918
Impairment losses 152450 123310

Fair Value of Investments

The following tables show the fair value of the Companys investments in accordance with ASC 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

in active

markets for Significant other Significant

Carrying Total fair identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs

amount value Level Level Level

December 31 2011

U.S government agency

securities 1454105 1454105 1454105

Obligations of state and political

subdivisions 8665534 8665534 8665534

Corporate debt securities 329208 329208 329208

Total fixed maturity

investments 10448847 10448847

Equity securities excluding the

hedge fund 10900770 10900770 10900770

Hedge fund 1395933 1395933 1395933

Total equity securities 12296703 12296703
___________ ___________ _________

Total investments $22745550 $22745550 $10900770 $10448847 $1395933
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Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

in active

markets for Significant other Significant

Carrying Total fair identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs

amount value LeveL Level Level

December 31 2010

U.S government agency

securities 1959588 1959588 1959588

Obligations of state and political

subdivisions 8465737 8465737 8465737

Corporate debt securities 504156 504156 504156

Total fixed maturity investments .. 10929481 10929481

Equity securities excluding the

hedge fund 14145124 14145124 14145124

Hedge fund 1484884 1484884 1484884

Total equity securities 15630008 15630008
___________ ___________ __________

Total investments $26559489 $26559489 $14145124 $10929481 $1484884

There were no transfers between Levels and during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of investments measured at fair value on

recurring basis using significant unobservable Level inputs for the year ended December 31 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Balance classified as Level beginning of year $1484884 $1389737

Total gains or losses included in earnings

Net realized gains

Change in fair value of hedge fund investments 88951 95147
Purchases or sales

Transfers in and/or out of Level

Ending balance $1395933 $1484884

There were no transfers into or from the Level hierarchy during the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010

Under existing accounting principles generally accepted in the United States we are required to recognize

certain assets at their fair value in our consolidated balance sheets This includes our fixed maturity investments

and equity securities In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of FASBs ASC

820 fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date ASC 820 establishes three-level

valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements The valuation hierarchy is based upon whether the

inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability are observable or unobservable in the market at the measurement

date with quoted market prices being the highest level Level and unobservable inputs being the lowest level

Level fair value measurement will fall within the level of the hierarchy based on the input that is

significant to determining such measurement The three levels are defined as follows

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology that are quoted prices unadjusted for

identical assets or liabilities in active markets
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Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted market prices

unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets Level inputs include quoted prices for

similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets

that are not active and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either

directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology that are unobservable for the asset or liability

At each measurement date we estimate the fair value of the security using various valuation techniques We
utilize to the extent available quoted market prices in active markets or observable market inputs in estimating

the fair value of our investments When quoted market prices or observable market inputs are not available we
utilize valuation techniques that rely on unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value of investments The

following describes the valuation techniques we used to determine the fair value of investments held as of

December 31 2011 and what level within the fair value hierarchy each valuation technique resides

U.S government agency securities Comprised primarily of bonds issued by the Federal Home Loan

Bank the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal Farm Credit Bank and the Federal

National Mortgage Association The fair values of U.S government agency securities are priced using

the spread above the risk-free U.S Treasury yield curve As the yields for the risk-free U.S Treasury

yield curve are observable market inputs the fair values of U.S government agency securities are

included in the Level fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers that there is liquid market for the

types of securities held Broker quotes are not used for fair value pricing

Obligations of state and political subdivisions Comprised of fixed income obligations of state and

local governmental municipalities The fair values of these securities are based on quotes and current

market spread relationships and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers

that there is liquid market for the types of securities held Broker quotes are not used for fair value

pricing

Corporate debt securities Comprised of bonds issued by corporations The fair values of these

securities are based on quotes and current market spread relationships and are included in the Level

fair value hierarchy Amerlnst considers that there is liquid market for the types of securities held

Broker quotes are not used for fair value pricing

Equity securities at fair value Comprised primarily of investments in the common stock of publicly

traded companies in the U.S All of the Companys equities are included in the Level fair value

hierarchy The Company receives prices based on closing exchange prices from independent pricing

sources to measure fair values for the equities

Hedge fund Comprised of hedge fund whose objective is to seek attractive long-term returns with

lower volatility by investing in range of diversified investment strategies The fund invests in

diversified pool of hedge fund managers generally across six different strategies long/short equities

long/short credit macro multi-strategy opportunistic event-driven and portfolio hedge The fair value

of the hedge fund is based on the net asset value of the fund as reported by the external fund manager

The use of net asset value as an estimate of the fair value for investments in certain entities that

calculate net asset value is permitted practical expedient The fair value of our hedge fund is included

in the Level fair value hierarchy

To validate prices we complete quantitative analyses to compare the performance of the above investments

to the performance of appropriate benchmarks with significant differences identified and investigated

46



AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

There have been no material changes to any of our valuation techniques from what was used as of

December 31 2010 Since the fair value of financial instrument is an estimate of what willing buyer would pay

for our asset if we sold it we will not know the ultimate value of our financial instruments until they are sold We
believe the valuation techniques utilized provide us with the best estimate of the price that would be received to sell

our assets or transfer our liabilities in an orderly transaction between participants at the measurement date

Though current market conditions appear to have improved recently there is still the potential for further

instability which could present additional risks and uncertainties for our business and make it more difficult to

value certain of our securities if trading becomes less frequent As such valuations may include assumptions and

estimates that may have significant period-to-period changes that could have material adverse effect on our

results of operations or financial condition

Major categories of net interest and dividend income are summarized as follows

2011 2010

Interest earned

Fixed maturity investments 346425 339113

Short term investments and cash and cash equivalents 342 1957

Dividends earned 199679 217045

Investment expenses 137012 152905

Net investment income 409434 405210

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment associated with APSL at December 31 2011 and 2010 at cost less accumulated

depreciation and amortization totaled $745784 and $716230 respectively as follows

Accumulated

Depreciation

and

Cost Amortization Total

December 31 2011

Leasehold improvements 1865 1083 782

Furniture and fixtures 25184 6870 18314

Office equipment 18123 5066 13057

Computer equipment 10829 3703 7126

Computer software 2670 668 2002
Internal use software 926732 222229 704503

Total $985403 $239619 $745784

Accumulated

Depreciation

and

Cost Amortization Total

December 31 2010

Leasehold improvements 1865 518 1347

Furniture and fixtures 25184 3272 21912
Office equipment 18123 2477 15646

Computer equipment 10829 1537 9292
Internal use software 725662 57629 668033

Total $781663 65433 $716230
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LIABILITY FOR UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

Details of the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at December 31 2011 and 2010 are as

follows

2011 2010

Case basis estimates 382662 523889
Incurred But Not Reported 660781 679127

Totals $1043443 $1203016

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expense activity is as follows

2011 2010

Liabilitybeginning of year $1203016 $1510478

Incurred related to

Current
year 275504 32000

Prior
years 428532 5131

Total incurred 153028 26869

Paid related to

Current year

Prior years 6545 334331

Total paid 6545 334331

Liabilityend of year $1043443 $1203016

As result of the change in estimates of insured events in prior years the provision for losses and loss

adjustment expenses decreased by $428532 and $5131 in 2011 and 2010 respectively The 2011 decrease

resulted from favorable development on the CAMICO and PDIC treaties and the recoveries from VSC as

result of the Arbitrations final outcome partially offset by reserves established pursuant to the Reinsurance

Agreement The decrease in 2010 resulted from favorable development on CAMICO and PDIC treaties partially

offset by reserves established under the Reinsurance Agreement

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Amerlnst currently does not have public market for its common stock but the Company has historically

caused Investco to purchase shares from the Companys shareholders upon their death disability or retirement

from the practice of public accounting The repurchase price has been equal to the year-end net book value per

share for the most recently completed fiscal year reduced by the amount of any dividends already paid on the

repurchased shares during the calendar year of the repurchase and any dividends the shareholder would be

entitled to receive on the repurchased shares that have not been paid In addition the BMA has authorized

Investco to purchase shares on negotiated case-by-case basis and Investco has typically negotiated share

repurchases when requested by Company shareholders

On February 25 2011 the Board of Directors amended and restated Amerlnst Statement of Share

Ownership Policy to better manage the Companys expenditures from year to year Under the new policy that

became effective immediately the Company will limit Investcos repurchase of Company stock to $500000 per

calendar year In addition Investco will only be authorized to repurchase shares without Board approval from

shareholders upon their death disability or retirement from the practice of public accounting Except as approved
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by the Board negotiated purchases that do not satisfy these criteria will be discontinued for the foreseeable

future At the Board meeting the Board approved all outstanding requests for repurchase of shares amounting to

$300359 and for the remainder of 2011 authorized Investco to repurchase shares up to $500000

PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Premiums written were $710679 and $251896 during 2011 and 2010 respectively The premiums written

during the year ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were attributable to premium cessions from CFunder the

Reinsurance Agreement in the amount of $721203 and $137746 and to revisions to CAMICO premium

estimates for prior years in the amount of 10524 and $114150 respectively The increase in premiums

written under the Reinsurance Agreement resulted from increased cessions from CF in 2011 as result of

higher level of underwriting activity under the Agency Agreement resulting from the continued and successful

marketing of the program by APSL

OPERATING AND MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

With the exception of APSL Amerlnst AMIC Ltd Mezco and Investco have no employees Their

operating activities as well as certain management functions are performed by contracted professional service

providers Cedar Management Limited provides Amerlnst and AMIC Ltd certain management administrative

and operations services under the direction of Amerlnst Board of Directors pursuant to an agreement The

agreement may be terminated by either party upon not more than 90 days nor less than 60 days prior written

notice Mr Stuart Grayston our President was formerly director and officer of Cedar Management Limited

and Mr Thomas McMahon our Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer is shareholder officer director and

employee of Cedar Management Limited The company paid Cedar Management Limited $320000 and

$335000 in fees during 2011 and 2010 respectively

Operating and management expenses include compensation paid to members of the Board of Directors and

various committees of the Board totaling $466247 in 2011 and $431809 in 2010

10 TAXATION

Under current Bermuda law the Company and its subsidiaries are not required to pay taxes in Bermuda on

either income or capital gains The Company has received an undertaking from the Bermuda government that in

the event of income or capital gains taxes being imposed the Company will be exempted from such taxes until

the year 2035 However APSL which is Delaware corporation domiciled in the State of Illinois is subject to

taxation in the United States

Deferred income taxes arising from APSL reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax

purposes As of December 31 2011 and 2010 management set up full valuation allowances against the deferred

tax assets as disclosed below since the success of APSL was not certain and therefore it was more likely than not

that tax benefit would not be realized

2011 2010

Capitalized start-up expenses 266000 286221

Operating loss carryforwards 2153000 1033000

Depreciation and amortization 184000
__________

Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 2235000 1319221
Valuation allowance 2235000 1319221

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance
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11 DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS AND STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

AMIC Ltd.s ability to pay dividends to Amerlnst is subject to the provisions of the Bermuda insurance and

companies laws and the requirement to provide the ceding companies with collateral Under the Companies Act
AMIC Ltd would be prohibited from declaring or paying dividend at December 31 2011 if such payment
would reduce the realizable value of its assets to an amount less than the aggregate value of its liabilities issued

share capital and share premium accounts As of December 31 2011 approximately $32 million was available

for the declaration of dividends to shareholders However due to the requirement to provide the ceding

companies with collateral approximately $22 million was available for the payment of dividends to the

shareholders In addition AMIC Ltd must be able to pay its liabilities as they fall due after the payment of

dividend Our ability to pay dividends to common shareholders and to pay our operating expenses is dependent

on cash dividends from our subsidiaries The payment of such dividends by AMIC Ltd including its subsidiary

Investco to us is also limited under Bermuda law by the Insurance Act and Related Regulations which require

that AMIC Ltd maintain minimum levels of solvency and liquidity

Amerlnsts ability to pay common shareholders dividends and its operating expenses is dependent on cash

dividends from AMIC Ltd and its other subsidiaries The payment of such dividends by AMIC Ltd to Amerlnst

is limited under Bermuda law by the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 and Related Regulations as amended which

require that AMIC Ltd maintain minimum levels of solvency and liquidity For the
years

ended December 31
2011 and 2010 these requirements have been met The minimum required statutory capital and surplus was

$1000000 and $1000000 and actual statutory capital and surplus was $33315313 and $32209291 at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The minimum required level of relevant assets was $9342872 and

$9231848 and actual relevant assets was $10815518 and $10869403 at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively Statutory loss for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 was $209202 and $294498

respectively

12 UNAUDITED CONDENSED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
2011 QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

Net premiums earned 45490 80071 96283 190996

Commission income 72609 71736 91529 152614

Net investment income 95344 117481 96128 100481

Net realized gain 816768 499371 84653 379100

Total revenues $1030211 768659 368593 823191

Net loss 178925 $415165 $333209 $141861
Basic and diluted net loss per share 0.25 0.60 0.48 0.21

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
2010 QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

Net premiums earned 96410 2193 29555 28982
Commission income 1257 11064 29281 43449
Net investment income 77172 117699 70739 139600

Net realized gain 312368 630843 665369 747964

Total revenues 487207 761799 794944 959995

Net loss 434829 $347072 $1 14595 $205297
Basic and diluted net loss per share 0.59 0.47 0.16 0.30
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13 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Amerlnst has two operating segments reinsurance activity which also includes investments and other

activities and insurance activity which offers professional liability solutions to professional service firms

under the Agency Agreement with CF

The disclosure of RINITSTM as separate operating segment was discontinued in the fourth quarter of 2010

as it no longer met the quantitative thresholds prescribed by ASC 280 Segment Reporting

Revenues

Total losses and
expenses

Segment income loss
Identifiable assets

Revenues

Total losses and expenses

Segment income loss
Identifiable assets

14 STOCK COMPENSATION

December 31 2011

Reinsurance Insurance

Segment Segment Total

$2601937 388717 2990654

$1379756 2680058 4059814

$1222181 $2291341 $l069160
745784 745784

Reinsurance

Segment Total

$2918696 3003945

$1452800 4105738

$1465896 $llOl793

716230

Amerlnst Professional Services Limited APSL subsidiary of Amerlnst has entered into employment

agreements with four key members of senior management which grant them phantom shares of the Company

Under these agreements these employees were initially granted total of 75018 phantom shares of the Company

on the date of their employment The phantom shares are eligible for phantom dividends paid at the same rate as

regular dividends on the Companys common shares The phantom dividends may be used only to purchase

additional phantom shares with the purchase price of such phantom shares being the net book value of the

Companys actual common shares as of the end of the previous quarter During the year ended December 31

2011 1987 phantom shares were granted arising from the dividends declared on the Companys common shares

78872 phantom shares were outstanding at December 31 2011

The employees interest in the phantom shares initially granted as well as any additional shares granted from

dividends declared will vest on January 2015 The liability payable to the employees under this phantom share

plan is equal to the value of the phantom shares based on the net book value of the Companys actual common

shares at the end of the previous quarter less the initial value and is payable in cash upon the earlier of the

employee attaining 65 years of age or within 60 days of death or permanent disability including if such death or

permanent disability occurs before January 2015

The liability relating to these phantom shares is recalculated quarterly based on the net book value of the

Companys common shares at the end of each quarter As result of the overall decrease in the book value of the

Companys common shares since the grant dates no liability has been recorded by the Company relating to these

phantom shares at December 31 2011

December 31 2010

Insurance

Segment

85249

2652938

$2567689
716230
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15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In December 2009 APSL entered into non-cancellable operating lease for office space in Lisle Illinois

The lease is renewable at the option of the lessee under certain conditions Future lease payments for the years

ended December 31 are as follows

2012 55801

2013 57646

2014 59568

2015 61553

2016 15513

$250081
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure

Our retention of Deloitte Touche Ltd has been ratified by our Audit Committee and our shareholders There

have been no disagreements with Deloitte Touche Ltd with respect to any matter of accounting principles or

practices financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31 2011 the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K our

management including our President and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rule 3a- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based upon

that evaluation our President and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that as of December 31 2011 the end

of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K we maintained effective disclosure controls and

procedures

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the President and Chief

Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Conmuission Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework our management has concluded we maintained effective internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 3a- 15f as of December 31 2011

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting

objectives because of its inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is process that involves

human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human

failures Internal control over financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper management

override Because of such limitations there is risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected

on timely basis by internal control over financial reporting However these inherent limitations are known

features of the financial reporting process Therefore it is possible to design into the process safeguards to

reduce though not eliminate this risk

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements and other financial information contained in this report The accompanying consolidated financial

statements were prepared in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and include as

necessary
best estimates and judgments by management

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm

regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the

Companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to the permanent exemption granted to the Company

under the existing SEC rules Consequently this annual report does not include an attestation report of the

Companys registered public accounting firm
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Change in Internal Control

Our management including the President and Chief Financial Officer has reviewed our internal control

There have been no significant changes in our internal control during our most recently completed fiscal quarter

that materially affected or is likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to identification of directors and officers is

incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section captioned Election of Directors in the

Companys definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 31

2012 the Proxy Statement copy of which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of

the year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K The Company has two executive officers one of which is

director of the Company

Code of Ethics

We have Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all directors officers and employees

including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer You can find our Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics on our internet site www.amerinst.bm We will post any amendments to the Code of

Business Conduct and Ethics and any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of the SEC on our

internet site

Section 16 Compliance

Information appearing under the caption Other MattersSection 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Audit Committee

Information appearing under the captions Election of DirectorsMeetings and Conmiittees of the Board

and Report of the Audit Committee in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information

contained in the section captioned Election of DirectorsExecutive and Director Compensation in the Proxy

Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder

Matters

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information

contained in the section captioned Other MattersSecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management in the Companys Proxy Statement relating to its Annual General Meeting to be held on May 31

2012

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information

contained in the sections captioned Other MattersCertain Relationships and Related Transactions and

Election of Directors in the Companys Proxy Statement relating to its Annual General Meeting to be held on

May 31 2012

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information in the

section captioned Appointment of Auditors in the Companys Proxy Statement relating to its Annual General

Meeting to be held on May 31 2012
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

See Index to Financial Statements and Schedules on page 31

a2 See Index to Financial Statements and Schedules on page 31

a3 See Index to Exhibits set forth on pages
58 59

See Index to Exhibits

See Index to Financial Statements and Schedules on page 31

INVESTMENTSSCHEDULE

Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd

Consolidated Summary of Investments

as of December 31 2011

Amount at which

shown on the

Type of investment Cost Fair Value Balance Sheet

Fixed maturity investments

Bonds

U.S government and agencies and authorities 1446223 1454105 1454105

States municipalities and political subdivisions 8135268 8665534 8665534

Corporate debt securities 333024 329208 329208

Total fixed maturities 9914515 10448847 10448847

Equities

Common stocks

Bank trust and insurance companies 824580 994830 994830

Hedge fund industrial miscellaneous and all other 6750106 11301873 11301873

Total equity securities 7574686 12296703 12296703

Total investments $17489201 $22745550 $22745550

Adjusted cost of equity securities taking into account other than temporary impairment charges and as to

fixed maturities original cost reduced by repayments and adjusted for amortization of premiums or accrual

of discounts
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Dated March 29 2012 AMERINST INSURANCE GROUP LTD

By Isi STUART GRAYsroN

Stuart Grayston

President Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Title Date

Isi STuART G1YsToN
Stuart Grayston

Is THOMAS McMiioN

Thomas McMahon

/s IRVIN DIioND

Irvin Diamond

Is JEROME HAcuus

Jerome Harris

Is/ JEWY GILLMAN

Jeifry Giliman

Is DAvm KLUNK

David Klunk

Is THOMAS Lii.Lm

Thomas Lithe

Is/ DAVID THOMPSON

David Thompson

President and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer

Director and Chairman of the Board

Director and Vice-Chairman of the

Board

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

March 29 2012

Name
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Year ended December 31 2011

Exhibit

Number Description

3i Memorandum of Association of Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd.incorporated by reference herein

to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed 3/2/99 No 333-64929

3u Bye-laws of the Companyincorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-4A filed 6/29/99 No 333-64929

4.1 Section 47 of the Companys Bye-laws-included in Exhibit 3u hereto

4.2 Statement of Share Ownership Policyincorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 4.1 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/18/08 No 000-28249

10.2 Agreement between Country Club Bank and AIICincorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.2

of AMIGs Annual Report on Form 10-K filed 3/30/92 No 000-17676

10.4 Investment Advisory Agreement For Discretionary Accounts between Amerlnst Insurance Company
and Harris Associates L.P dated as of January 22 1996 as amended by the Amendment to

Investment Advisory Agreement for Discretionary Accounts dated as of April 996incorporated

by reference herein to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 11/13/98

No 000-28249

10.5 Director Compensation Summary

10.6 Management Agreement between USA Risk Group Bermuda Ltd Cedar Management Limited

and AMIC Ltd dated July 2008incorporated herein by reference to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed 3/31/09 No 000-28249

10.7 Addenda to Management Agreement between USA Risk Group Bermuda Ltd Cedar Management

Limited and AMIC Ltd effective July 2008incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed 3/31/09 No 000-28249

10.8 Addendum to Management Agreement between USA Risk Group Bermuda Ltd Cedar

Management Limited and AMIC Ltd effective January 2010incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 of the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed 3/29/10 No 000-28249

10.9 Addendum to Management Agreement between USA Risk Group Bermuda Ltd Cedar

Management Limited and AMIC Ltd effective January 2011incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 of the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed 3/25/11 No 000-28249

10.10 Employment Agreement effective November 24 2009 between Amerlnst Professional Services

Limited and Kyle Nieman III effective November 24 2009incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.16 of the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K filed 3/29/10 No 000-28249

10.11 Agency Agreement effective September 25 2009 among Amerlnst Professional Services Limited

The North River Insurance Company United States Fire Insurance Company Crum Forster

Indemnity Company Crum and Forster Insurance Company and Crum Forster Specialty

Insurance Companyincorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form lO-Q filed 11/13/09 No 000-28249

10.12 Professional Liability Quota Share Agreement dated September 25 2009 among Amerlnst Insurance

Company Ltd The North River Insurance Company United States Fire Insurance Company

Crum Forster Indemnity Company Crum and Forster Insurance Company and Crum Forster

Specialty Insurance Companyincorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 11/13/09 No 000-28249
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.13 Addendum to Management Agreement between USA Risk Group Bermuda Ltd Cedar

Management Limited and AMIC Ltd effective January 2012

10.14 Addendum to Management Agreement between Cedar Management Limited and AMIC Ltd

effective January 2012

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Stuart Grayston pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Thomas McMahon pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCH XBRL Instance Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documentt

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

Filed electronically herewith
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Corporate Information

Amerlnst Insurance Group lid

Continental Building

25 Church Street

P.O Box HM 1601

Hamilton HM GX Bermuda

Legal Counsel

Appleby

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

P.O Box HM 1179

Hamilton HM EX Bermuda

GunsterYoakley Stewart P.A

777 Flagler Drive Suite 500E

West Palm Beach FL 33401

Bates Carey Nicolaides liP

191 North Wacker Drive Suite 2400

Chicago IL 60606

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Butterfield Fulcrum Group

Bermuda Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08 Bermuda

Independent Auditors

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Copies of the Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd 2011 Annual Report

on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

are available without charge to stockholders upon written request to

Amerlnst Insurance Group Ltd

do Cedar Management Limited

P.O Box HM 1601

Hamilton HM GX Bermuda

The Form 10-K is included within this 2011 Annual Report and is

also available on the Securities and Exchange Commissions Internet

site at http//www.sec.gov and on the Amerlnst Internet site at

http//www.amerinst.bm

Investor Information

Shareholder inquiries requests for transfer name changes and

redemption of shares due to death retirement or disability should

be referred to our Shareholder Services Division

Amerlnst Insurance Group lid

do Cedar Management Limited

P.O Box HM 601

Hamilton HM GX Bermuda

Shareholder Communications 800 422-8141

Fax 441 295-1 702

E-mail amerinst@cedar.bm

Web http//www.amerinst.bm

Deloitte Touche Ltd

Corner House

Church Parliament Streets

P.O Box HM 1556

Hamilton HM FX Bermuda

Annual Meeting
The 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at

1000 a.m on Thursday May 31 2012 at

Newstead Belmont Hills

27 Harbour Road

Pa get Bermuda

Shareholders are encouraged to attend
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